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Cook County & Grand Marais Economic Development Authority

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 — 4:00 PM
Cook County Courthouse - Commissioner’s Room
411 W 2 Street

Grand Marais, MN 55604
AGENDA

1. Callto Order

2. Public to Address the Commission
3. Approval of Agenda

4. Public Hearings

5. Approval of Meeting Minutes
a. December 19, 2023 Regular Meeting (pages 1-4)

6. Review of Financials
a. EDA December Financials (accept and forward to audit) (pages 5-8)
b. EDA December Payments (motion to approve) (page 9)
c. Superior National at Lutsen Golf Course December (accept and forward to audit) (pages 10-14)
d. EDA and Superior National at Lutsen Golf 2022 Audit (pages 15-76)

7. New Business
a. Resolutions for Approval
2024-01 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR AND, UPON APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT FROM THE
DEPARTMENT OF IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $300,000 TO
SUPPORT CONSTRUCTION OF THE BJORKBERG RESIDENTIAL PROJECT (pages 77-78)

b. Cedar Grove Business Park Offers
i. Jeremy Larson, JL Larson Construction - Lot 6, Block 5 (pages 79-82)
ii. Paulina Backstrom, EcoBlue Recycling LLC — Lots 4 and 5, Block 4 (pages 83-88)
c. Election of 2024 Officers (page 89)
d. Confirmation of Committee Assighments (page 89)
e. Proposed 2024 Meeting Dates (page 90)

8. Other/Old Business
a. Executive Director Updates
i. MOU HRA Cedar Grove Property (pages 91-92)
ii. Revised 2024 Budget Categories
iii. EDA Property above existing Cedar Grove Business Park (page 93-96)
iv. Construction loan for Switchback Village Residential Development
v. EDA grant application to MHFA, Workforce Housing Development Program (pages 97-98)
b. SBDC Annual Report (page 99)



9. Committee Reports
10. Commissioner Items

11. Adjourn
Next Meeting: February 20, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. Cook County Courthouse — Commissioner’s Room.
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AUTHORITY

Cook County & Grand Marais Economic Development Authority

Tuesday, December 19, 2023 - 4:00 PM
Cook County Courthouse - Commissioner’s Room
411 W 2 Street

Grand Marais, MN 55604
MINUTES

Present: Steve Surbaugh, Myron Bursheim, Stacey Hawkins for Dave Mills, Mary Somnis, Mark Shackleton

Absent: Dave Mills, Tracy Benson, Howard Hedstrom
Others Present: Theresa Bajda, Maggie Barnard, Pat Campanaro, Kalli Hawkins, Jason Hale

1. Call to Order
The December 19, 2023 regular meeting of the EDA was called to order by President Surbaugh at 4:04 p.m.

2. Public to Address the Commission
President Surbaugh asked several times if there were any comments from public attendees. No comments.

3. Approval of Agenda
Surbaugh called for agenda additions and if there are none, motion to approve the agenda as presented. No
additions. Vote to approve December 19, 2023 Agenda (Bursheim/Hawkins) Vote: Passed (5/0)

4. Public Hearings
Surbaugh opened the public hearing period. Comments will be limited to three minutes per person and each person
should state their first and last name. Bajda noted that she received no emails or phone calls offering comments.

2023-21 RESOLUTION ADOPTING POLICY AND CRITERIA FOR AWARDING BUSINESS SUBSIDIES IN COMPLIANCE WITH
THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE MINNESOTA BUSINESS SUBSIDY ACT (pages 16-17)

Surbaugh opened public hearing for this resolution. Called for public comments several times. No public comments.
Surbaugh closed this hearing.

2023-22 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY TO THE HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY OF COOK COUNTY FOR DEVELOPMENT OF RESIDENTIAL HOUSING (pages 18-26)

Surbaugh opened public hearing for this resolution. Called for public comments several times. No public comments.
Surbaugh closed this hearing.

2023-23 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF GRAND MARAIS MINNESOTA
FOR DEVELOPMENT OF AN ANIMAL SHELTER (pages 27-35)

Surbaugh opened public hearing for this resolution. Called for public comments several times. No public comments.
Surbaugh closed this hearing.

5. Approval of Meeting Minutes
November 21, 2023 Regular Meeting (pages 1-4)
No discussion.



Vote to approve November 21, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes: (Somnis/Bursheim) Vote: Passed (5/0)

6. Review of Financials

a. EDA November Financials (accept and forward to audit) (pages 5-8)
Shackleton said there is nothing new to share with healthy cash positions. Payment was made to the
golf course December 6™. Board members and President accept and forward to audit.
(Hawkins/Shackleton) Vote: Passed (5/0)

b. EDA November Payments (motion to approve) (pages 9-10)
No questions. Motion to approve EDA November payments. (Somnis/Shackleton)
Vote: Passed (5/0)

c. Superior National at Lutsen Golf Course November (accept and forward to audit) (pages 11-15)
Shackleton said the golf course is in a good position financially, he had nothing to add.
Board members and President accept and forward to audit. (Bursheim/Hawkins) Vote: Passed (5/0)

7. New Business

a. Resolutions for Approval

2023-21 RESOLUTION ADOPTING POLICY AND CRITERIA FOR AWARDING BUSINESS SUBSIDIES IN COMPLIANCE WITH
THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE MINNESOTA BUSINESS SUBSIDY ACT (pages 16-22)

Bajda stated the EDA Board reviewed at the November meeting and have now held a required public hearing.
Reminded Board the policy/criteria follow state statute requirements and largely triggered by $150,000 or greater in
public assistance. Vote to approve Resolution 2023-21 (Shackleton/Hawkins) Vote: Passed (5/0)

2023-22 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY TO THE HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY OF COOK COUNTY FOR DEVELOPMENT OF RESIDENTIAL HOUSING (pages 23-31)

Bajda summarized the resolution authorizes sale of two parcels to HRA for $1.00 following the approved residential
rezoning by City of Grand Marais and Planning Commission. Indicated the terms require the HRA to convey said
property within 5 years to qualified developer(s) to support construction of housing units. Clarified the housing must
be long-term, no short-term rentals or vacation units. Updated Board that conveyance will occur after the Cedar
Grove Declaration of Covenants has been amended, likely in February 2024.

Hawkins questioned if there was any density clause in the agreement to ensure the property isn’t used for one or two
units.

Jason Hale confirmed HRA's intent is not to support one or two units, but want to be careful that wording isn’t too
prescriptive on number of units as more work on where curb cuts will be, where wetlands are, where utility access is,
etc. all contribute to how the property will be platted for future housing units. Suggested the HRA and EDA adopt a
MOU to memorialize this intent.

Somnis recused herself as an HRA board member.
Vote to approval of Resolution 2023-22 (Hawkins/Shackleton) Vote: Passed (4/0) (1) Somnis abstained.

2023-23 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF GRAND MARAIS MINNESOTA
FOR DEVELOPMENT OF AN ANIMAL SHELTER (pages 32-40)

Bajda stipulated the agreement requires construction within five years of conveyance, which similar to the HRA
transaction will occur after Cedar Grove Declaration of Covenants is amended, likely in February 2024.

Vote to approve Resolution 2023-23 (Somnis/Shackleton) Vote: Passed (5/0)

2023-24 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH MIKE LARSON TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR
THE COOK COUNTY/GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$18,000 FOR MANAGEMENT OVERSIGHT AT SUPERIOR NATIONAL AT LUTSEN GOLF COURSE (pages 41-51)



Bajda stated this agreement is for the 2024 calendar year and in response to retirement of Scott Harrison from Board
of Governors. Indicated that Scott’s retirement required staff and Board of Governors to review current workload and
how tasks would be thoughtfully divided to minimize any impact to operations or staffing. Stated that Mike Larson has
experience, history and knowledge of golf course operations and strong relationship with key staff to provide
supervision and direction on operation matters while working closely with Executive Director, salaried golf course
staff, and the Board of Governors. Confirmed these services will be paid for by golf course.

Vote to approve Resolution 2023-24 (Shackleton/Bursheim) Vote: Passed (5/0)

2023-25 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH MIKE LARSON TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR
THE COOK COUNTY/GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$12,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF DRAFTING A STRATEGIC REPORT FOR SUPERIOR NATIONAL AT LUTSEN GOLF COURSE
(pages 52-62)

Bajda stated a scope of services is outlined on page 62 of the agenda packet. Indicated this report will compile
existing studies and reports related to golf course operations, maintenance, staffing, marketing, visitor ship, etc. and
provide EDA Board and Board of Governors will information to assess where the golf course has been, where
deficiencies or threats to operations might exist and where we’re going. Confirmed this report is not a
recommendation by Mike Larson, rather a tool for the EDA to determine whether any recommendations need to be
made to maintain Superior National at Lutsen as a destination course well positioned for future success.

Somnis recused herself as she will assist Mike Larson with portions of the report. Shared the preliminary results of the
Economic Impact Study recently completed for the golf course which points to roughly $18 million in self-reported
spending from golf course patrons.

Vote to approve Resolution 2023-25 (Shackleton/Bursheim) Vote: Passed (4/0) (1) Somnis abstained.

2023-26 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH NORTHLAND FOUNDATION FOR SMALL
BUSINESS CONSULTING FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $49,980 (pages 63-66)

Bajda indicated this agreement will continue partnership with Northland Foundation and SBDC consultant Pat
Campanaro. Thrilled to see an increase in yearly contract amount expressed gratitude for Pat’s work in Cook County.
Vote to approve Resolution 2023-26 (Somnis/Shackleton) Vote: Passed (5/0)

2023-27 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 2023 EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH AARON

DAVIES RELATED TO GOLF COURSE SUPERINTENDENT DUTIES (pages 67-69)

Bajda stated this is for golf course Maintenance Superintendent and adds required language to authorize award of a
yearly performance bonus in 2023 for auditing purposes. Vote to approve Resolution 2023-27 (Somnis/Shackleton)
Vote: Passed (5/0)

2023-28 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS WITH HEATH EKSTROM AND AARON DAVIES FOR
SERVICES AT SUPERIOR NATIONAL AT LUTSEN GOLF COURSE IN 2024 (pages 70-82)

Bajda stated while 2023 contracts go through mid-2024, new contracts for 2024 required to include earned sick and
safe time language, while also removing language for award of yearly performance bonuses which pose challenges
with yearly audit and budgeting. Noted the agreements reflect an increase in annual salary in lieu of a performance
bonus. Vote to approve Resolution 2023-28 (Somnis/Shackleton) Vote: Passed (5/0)

b. Approval of annual bonus compensation Superior National at Lutsen
Shackleton confirmed bonus amounts for two salaried positions.
Vote to approve bonus compensation (Shackleton/Somnis) Vote: Passed (5/0)

8. Other/Old Business
a. Executive Director Updates



e Board 2023 Per Diem Payment
Bajda has reviewed these for the year and will request book keeper to issue this week.

e Renewal of WTIP underwriting contract
Bajda said this is up for renewal in June, no decision needed tonight just wants members to consider value and
messaging to confirm for 2024 budget. Cost was $2,080.00 for one year.

e Transition plan Superior National at Lutsen
Bajda is serving as Secretary on the Superior National Board of Governors. She reviewed the sections of transition
plan.

e  ESST Superior National at Lutsen Staff
Bajda reported that beginning January 1%, all golf course staff will accrue 1 hour of earned sick and safe time for every
30 hours worked, not to exceed 48 hours in a year, with a year over year balance maximum of 80 hours.

e Meeting live stream
Bajda confirmed OWL order has been placed and was hopeful would have been here in time for the meeting, but will
aim for January to start live streaming. Requested board authorize minute taking services continue in 2024.

e Sponsorship request from CCLEP
Bajda shared sponsorship request form CCLEP for their February 7*" Builders Workshop that supports localized
workforce development and continuing education credits for our local tradespeople. Vote to support CCLEP
workshop at the $1,000 visionary level (Somnis/Bursheim) Vote: Passed (5/0)

e 2024 Budget
Bajda confirmed the County Board of Commissioners approved the EDA 2024 budget at $490,720 at the County board
meeting earlier this morning.

b. SBDC Report (page 83)

e Campanaro said Northland Foundation extended the 2023 contract to fund her position through December.
She also highlighted two programs that Northland supports, a low interest construction & rehabilitation commercial
loan program and Border Cities Grant Program for businesses that saw a 10% reduction in revenues from 2019
through 2021 due to border and/or BWCA closures. Full annual report will be in the January 2024 packet.

e Coopetition Presentation Slides (pages 84-88)

Campanaro introduced this concept as a collaboration between business competitors in the hope of mutually
beneficial results. An example is the cooperation of competing Gunflint Trail businesses when one is in need or the
creation of the COVID-19 vaccines.

9. Committee Reports
None.

10. Commissioner Items
None.

11. Adjourn
President Surbaugh adjourned the December 19, 2023 meeting at 4:57 p.m.

Next Meeting: January 16, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. Cook County Courthouse — Commissioner’s Room.



Cook County/Grand Marais Economic Development Authority

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2023

TOTAL

AS OF DEC 31, 2023 AS OF DEC 31, 2022 (PY) % CHANGE

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts
GMSB Checking Account
GMSB Money Market
NSFCU 5162030 Checking
NSFCU Money Market (87)
NSFCU Patronage
NSFCU Savings

Total Bank Accounts

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets

Due from Lutsen Recreation
Due from Lutzen Mountainside
Due from SNL

Prepaid Rent

Taxes Receivable - current
Taxes Receivable - delinquent
Undeposited Funds

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Land Held for Resale
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
Tac Area Bus Relief Note Rec
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

16,709.70
468,806.47
56,405.23
0.00

2.22

10.19
$541,933.81

2,372.37
$2,372.37

13,392.11
10,800.00
0.00
915.00
19,926.46
8,396.00
0.00
$53,429.57

$597,735.75

303,000.00
$303,000.00

0.00
$0.00

$900,735.75

177,206.80
382,733.20
134,583.25
1,019.37
10,024.93
$705,567.55

25,000.00
$25,000.00

23,429.98

150,000.00
915.00
19,926.46
8,396.00
0.00
$202,667.44

$933,234.99

303,000.00
$303,000.00

171,201.29
$171,201.29

$1,407,436.28

164.55 %
-85.26 %
-100.00 %
-99.78 %
-99.90 %
-23.19%

-90.51 %
-90.51 %

-42.84 %

-100.00 %
0.00 %
0.00 %
0.00 %

-73.64 %
-35.95 %

0.00 %
0.00 %

-100.00 %
-100.00 %

-36.00 %




Cook County/Grand Marais Economic Development Authority

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2023

TOTAL

AS OF DEC 31, 2023 AS OF DEC 31, 2022 (PY) % CHANGE

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 1,559.25 0.00
Total Accounts Payable $1,5659.25 $0.00 0.00%
Credit Cards
Visa Credit Card 636.26
Total Credit Cards $636.26 $0.00 0.00%
Other Current Liabilities
Contingent Liability 0.00 216,000.00 -100.00 %
Deferred Revenue 0.00 0.00
Due to City of Grand Marais 362,762.02 362,762.02 0.00 %
Due to Cook County 0.00 100,000.00 -100.00 %
Due to Workforce Recruitment 0.00 0.00
Salaries/Benefits 0.00 29,820.01 -100.00 %
Total Other Current Liabilities $362,762.02 $708,582.03 -48.80 %
Total Current Liabilities $364,957.53 $708,582.03 -48.49 %
Long-Term Liabilities
Unavailable Rev - Deferred Tax 8,396.00 8,396.00 0.00 %
Total Long-Term Liabilities $8,396.00 $8,396.00 0.00 %
Total Liabilities $373,353.53 $716,978.03 -47.93 %
Equity
Opening Bal Equity -11,596.18 131,395.58 -108.83 %
Retained Earnings 559,062.67 590,941.34 -5.39 %
Net Income -20,084.27 -31,878.67 37.00 %
Total Equity $527,382.22 $690,458.25 -23.62 %
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $900,735.75 $1,407,436.28 -36.00 %




Cook County/Grand Marais Economic Development Authority

Budget vs. Actuals: FY_2023 - FY23 P&L
January - December 2023

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET % OF BUDGET
Income
EDA Levy
Levy County - Operations 234,773.01 295,000.00 79.58 %
Levy County Cedar Grove Pass Thru 59,066.81
Total EDA Levy 293,839.82 295,000.00 99.61 %
Grant Income
IRRRB - Community Connections 50,000.00
IRRRB Birch Bark Demolition Grant 46,300.00
Misc Income 212.00
Total Grant Income 96,512.00
Interest Income 1,391.76
Northland SBDC Income 42,033.75
Rent Income 4,200.00
Sale of Business Lots (deleted) 0.00
Uncategorized Income 0.00
Total Income $437,977.33 $295,000.00 148.47 %
GROSS PROFIT $437,977.33 $295,000.00 148.47 %
Expenses
Dues/Memberships 6,075.00
Melio Service Fees (deleted) 0.00
Operating Expenses
Advertising/Marketing/Website 5,470.70 3,500.00 156.31 %
Bank Charges 112.00 100.00 112.00 %
Melio Service Fees 30.00
Total Bank Charges 142.00 100.00 142.00 %
Director Search Expense 925.26
Insurance 5,361.00 4,000.00 134.03 %
Interest Expense 1,000.00
Meeting Expenses & Per Diem 3,255.00 3,000.00 108.50 %
Office Expenses 19.00
Equipment/Computers/Virtual 4,844.25 4,000.00 121.11 %
Supplies 1,104.86 1,000.00 110.49 %
Total Office Expenses 5,968.11 5,000.00 119.36 %
Rent Expense 13,115.76 15,000.00 87.44 %
Telephone 1,431.31 1,200.00 119.28 %
Total Operating Expenses 36,669.14 31,800.00 115.31 %
Professional Services
Accounting Support 3,455.00 4,200.00 82.26 %
Legal 2,000.00
SBDC Consultant Expense 35,720.00
SBDC Expenses - Other 6,313.75
State Audit 21,250.00 18,000.00 118.06 %



Cook County/Grand Marais Economic Development Authority

Budget vs. Actuals: FY_2023 - FY23 P&L
January - December 2023

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET % OF BUDGET
Total Professional Services 66,738.75 24,200.00 275.78 %
PROJECTS
Business Development Program 62,965.95 110,000.00 57.24 %
Cedar Grove Business Park Pass Thru 82,648.52
Property Tax 14,390.41
Total Cedar Grove Business Park Pass Thru 97,038.93
Housing Projects 50,000.00
IRRRB - Community Connections 50,000.00
IRRRB Birch Bark Demolition Grant 46,300.00
Total PROJECTS 306,304.88 110,000.00 278.46 %
Staff Expenses
Director Salary (w/ benefits) 40,978.66 90,000.00 45.53 %
Training/Travel/Mileage 1,295.17 4,000.00 32.38 %
Total Staff Expenses 42,273.83 94,000.00 44,97 %
Tax
Payroll 35,000.00
Total Tax 35,000.00
Total Expenses $458,061.60 $295,000.00 155.28 %
NET OPERATING INCOME $-20,084.27 $0.00 0.00%
NET INCOME $-20,084.27 $0.00 0.00%




Bill Approval Status
29 Dec 2023 - 08 Jan 2024

BILL NUMBER VENDOR BILL DATE AMOUNT PAID STATUS APPROVAL STATUS DUE DATE
3614714 Melio 12/29/2023 $1.50 Paid - 12/29/2023
- Surbaugh, Steve 12/31/2023 $360.00 Paid - 01/10/2024
-- Hedstrom, Howard 12/31/2023 $330.00 Paid -- 01/10/2024
- Shackleton, Mark 12/31/2023 $360.00 Paid - 01/10/2024
-- Myron Bursheim 12/31/2023 $420.00 Paid -- 01/10/2024
- Twin City VoIP Inc 12/31/2023 $29.25 Paid - 01/10/2024
- Somnis, Mary 12/31/2023 $90.00 Paid - 01/10/2024
-- Tracy Benson 12/31/2023 $330.00 Paid -- 01/10/2024
231203 Campanaro, Pat 01/07/2024 $3,570.00 Paid - 01/17/2024
175 Drosera Holdings 01/07/2024 $1,093.26 Paid - 01/17/2024
2315 Maggie Barnard 01/07/2024 $68.75 Paid -- 01/17/2024
-- Destination Consultancy Group, LLC 01/07/2024 $2,500.00 Paid -- 01/17/2024
12311 Fryberger, Buchanan 01/07/2024 $548.00 Paid - 01/17/2024
12312 Fryberger, Buchanan 01/07/2024 $615.00 Paid -- 01/17/2024
223 Sarena Crowley 01/07/2024 $300.00 Paid -- 01/17/2024
- Sundew Technical Services 01/07/2024 $1,058.23 Paid - 01/17/2024




Superior National

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2023

AS OF DEC 31, 2023

AS OF DEC 31, 2022 (PY)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts
Cash on Hand
NSFCU Checking
NSFCU Checking 5162029
NSFCU Money Market
NSFCU Patronage Rebate
NSFCU Savings

Total Bank Accounts

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation
Building - Club House
Building - Maintenance
Capital ltems
Club House Equipment
Golf Course Equipment
Golf Course Land
Land Improvements - 1st 18 Hole
Land Improvements - New Nine
Land Improvements 2013 - 2017
Total Fixed Assets
Other Assets
Deferred Outflow - Pension
Right to use leased assets
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

1,100.00
0.00
38,967.67
412,126.53
1,029.45
10.00
$453,233.65

0.00
$0.00

$29,472.42
$482,706.07

-6,632,218.98
426,088.97
69,357.03
26,350.00
133,018.81
1,405,662.23
213,685.00
2,705,805.25
1,966,820.63
5,973,887.00
$6,288,455.94

63,452.00
347,232.00
$410,684.00

$7,181,846.01

1,100.00

163,048.24
258,757.22
817.07
10.00
$423,732.53

1,410.00
$1,410.00

$37,662.09
$462,804.62

-6,632,218.98
426,088.97
69,357.03
0.00
125,433.81
1,349,950.41
213,685.00
2,705,805.25
1,966,820.63
5,973,887.00
$6,198,809.12

63,452.00
347,232.00
$410,684.00

$7,072,297.74
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Superior National

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2023

AS OF DEC 31, 2023

AS OF DEC 31, 2022 (PY)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
*Accounts Payable
Total Accounts Payable

Credit Cards
Other Current Liabilities
Direct Deposit Payable
Due to EDA
Gift Certificates
Minnesota Department of Revenue Payable
Payroll Liabilities
Child Support
Federal Taxes (941/944)
MN Income Tax
MN Unemployment Taxes
PERA Employee
PERA Life
Rent
Total Payroll Liabilities

Sales Tax Payable
Tips Payable
Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Deferred Inflow - Pension
Lease Liability
Loan Payable - Cook County
Net Pension Liability

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

25,636.15
$25,636.15

$0.00

0.00
0.00
33,710.21
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
19,226.82
646.17

0.00

0.00
19,872.99
-71,648.98
0.00
$-18,065.78

$7,5670.37

50,663.00
264,656.00
2,169,972.00
198,001.00
$2,683,292.00

$2,690,862.37

$4,490,983.64
$7,181,846.01

-1,508.89
$-1,508.89

$-350.00

0.00
150,000.00
27,193.38

0.00

0.00
0.00
17,816.57
0.00

0.00
17,816.57
1,213.52
743.60
$196,967.07

$195,108.18

50,663.00
264,656.00
2,169,972.00
198,001.00
$2,683,292.00

$2,878,400.18

$4,193,897.56
$7,072,297.74
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Superior National

Profit and Loss
December 2023

TOTAL
DEC 2023 JAN - DEC 2023 (YTD)
Revenue
Golfing Related Sales
3% Service Fee 35,314.98
Cart Rentals 226,907.50
Club Rentals/Lessons 11,670.28
Driving Range Fees 12,036.74
Greens Fees 703.05 905,482.88
Membership Fees 195.00 47,615.00
Total Golfing Related Sales 898.05 1,239,027.38
Lutsen 99er 40,570.00
Merchandise, Beverage & Food
Beverage Sales 3,939.83 150,881.67
Food Sales 4,283.04 86,436.21
Merchandise Sales 289.66 167,012.45
N/A Beverage Sales 0.00
Total Merchandise, Beverage & Food 8,5612.53 404,330.33
Sales - Unallocated -2,085.45 5,603.01
Uncategorized Income 0.00
Total Revenue $7,325.13 $1,689,530.72
Cost of Goods Sold
Beverage CoGS 781.10 72,046.17
Food CoGS 1,041.99 44,419.48
Merchandise CoGS 16,349.76 95,721.11
Total Cost of Goods Sold $18,172.85 $212,186.76
GROSS PROFIT $-10,847.72 $1,477,343.96
Expenditures
Administrative & General
Computers/POS 1,053.23
Credit Card Fees 177.00 46,281.32
Employee Recruitment 182.50
Insurance 12,814.28
Licenses/Permits/Dues 862.25 4,293.43
Office Expense 148.67 3,275.76
Rent Expense 2,597.47
Travel Expense 319.25 3,189.99
Total Administrative & General 1,507.17 73,687.98
Club House
Cart Lease 91,978.94
Cash Over/Short 1,142.00
Paper Products/Cleaning Supply 1,556.96
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Superior National

Profit and Loss
December 2023

TOTAL
DEC 2023 JAN - DEC 2023 (YTD)
Repairs and Maintenance 534.70 5,364.61
Supplies 2,396.46 8,124.13
Uniforms 641.48 8,153.69
Utilities 3,971.86
Electric - Club House 388.84 10,453.14
Internet - Club House 519.85 2,591.76
Propane - Club House 972.77 5,258.96
Telephone - Club House 269.11 3,494.59
Television - Club House 172.06 2,558.43
Total Utilities 2,322.63 28,328.74
Total Club House 5,895.27 144,649.07
Grounds Maintenance 142.09
Cart Maintenance 2,800.00 24,173.26
Course Improvement 2,837.51
Fertilizer & Chemicals 17,638.00
Gas/Lube 1,271.74 45,843.53
Irrigation Expense 6,618.44
Seed & Soll 282.79 5,410.20
Shop Expense 1,380.74 8,334.07
Small Tools/Parts 2,206.27 52,011.59
Supplies 8,606.11 21,212.80
Utilities 535.86
Electric 369.15 17,973.80
Garbage 678.60 3,764.92
Internet 0.00
Propane 425.90 1,424.87
Septic 5,162.02
Telephone 0.00
Total Utilities 1,473.65 28,861.47
Vehicle Maintenance/Gas 1,753.19 1,753.19
Total Grounds Maintenance 19,774.49 214,836.15
Melio Service Fees 21.00 111.00
Payroll Expenses
Company Contributions 0.00
Payroll Burden
MN Unemployment Insurance 8,407.06
Payroll Taxes 3,849.79 63,896.53
Retirement/PERA 2,816.32 14,747.38
Work Comp Insurance 7,972.66
Total Payroll Burden 6,666.11 95,023.63

13



Superior National

Profit and Loss

December 2023
TOTAL
DEC 2023 JAN - DEC 2023 (YTD)
Salaries/Wages
Grounds 18,571.00 150,063.36
Proshop 14,664.02 223,865.71
Salaried Employees 9,230.78 118,653.98
Total Salaries/Wages 42,465.80 492,583.05
Wages 0.00 0.00
Total Payroll Expenses 49,131.91 587,606.68
Professional Services
Accounting/Audit 1,368.25 10,011.55
Marketing and Promotion 7,642.00 80,756.33
Total Professional Services 9,010.25 90,767.88
Uncategorized Expense 0.00
Total Expenditures $85,340.09 $1,111,658.76
NET OPERATING REVENUE $-96,187.81 $365,685.20
Other Revenue
Interest Income 710.93 3,706.55
Total Other Revenue $710.93 $3,706.55
Other Expenditures
Capital Expenditures 32,167.87 42,911.04
Misc Expense 626.14 5,165.86
Total Other Expenditures $32,794.01 $48,076.90
NET OTHER REVENUE $ -32,083.08 $-44,370.35
NET REVENUE $-128,270.89 $321,314.85
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND MARAIS JOINT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

December 31, 2022

15



- This page intentionally left blank -

16



COOK COUNTY / GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Chganizanen
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Anditor’s Report

Basae Financial Statements:
Govermment-Wide Fmancial Statements:
Statement of Met Pasihon
Statement of Activihes

Fund Finaseial Statements:
Balaiwes Slieet - Govermmental Fumds
Statemnent of Revenises, Expendities and Change m Fund Balanee - Govenmental Fuands
Reconalmbon of e Statement of Revenues, Expendinires and Change m Fund
Balance of Govermmental Funds to the Statement of Activibes
Statement of MNet Position - Proprstary Fuands
Staremaent of Revenes, Expenses awd Change m Fund Net Positon - Propristary Fumnds
Statemsent of Cash Flows - Propaetary Funds

Motes ta Fmancial Statements

Budpewniry Compagisod Schedule - General Fund

Scledule of Propomwonate Share of Met Pension Lixbabiny

Schedule of Pension Conmbuitions

Motes 1o the Baquared Supplementary Informstion

OTHER REQUIRED REFORTS

Independent Avdinor’s Bepen on Iimemal Conerol Over Frinancial Feporing and on Comphance

and Chlser Belanters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed m Aceordasce wath

Grovernmen!t Audrring Standards

Mannesota Legal Complhiance Feport

Schedule of Findings and Respomses

Beference

Page No.

Staterend |
Statement 2

Siatensent 3
Statenient 4

Statement 5
Statement &
Statemsent 7

Statemsent 8

Exluibat A-1
Exlubit A-2
Exlubit A-3

13
14

1%
17

14
19

71
73
11
42

43
45

44
5l

33

17



- This page intentionally left blank -

18



INTRODUCTORY SECTION

19



- This page intentionally left blank -

20



COOR COUNTY / GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECOROMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Commussioners
Cook County / Grand Marais Joint
Economic Development Authonity
Grand Marais. Minnesota

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Cpinions

We have audited the accompanving financial statements of the governmental activities. the
business-rype activities and each major fund of Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic
Development Authority. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Cook Counry / Grand Marais
Joint Economic Development Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents,

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities. the business-rvpe
activities and each major fund of Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic Development
Authonity, as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position. and.
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the yvear then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amernica.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in
Covernment Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Char responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be mdependent of Cook County / Grand Marais Jomt Economic Development
Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the andit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

55 Sth Street East, Suite 1400 56, Paul, BN, 55101 6514267000 w--.'.-.'.rf-:.ipathl: Pas. Codm
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Responsibilities of Managemeni for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design. implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from matenal
nusstatement, whether due to frand or ervor.

In preparing the financial statements, management 15 required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events. considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Cook
County / Grand Marais Jomt Economic Development Authonty’s ability to continue as a
gomg concern for twelve months bevond the financial statement date, mcluding any currently
known mfornmation that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an
auditor's report that includes ouwr opimions. Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance
bait 1s not absolute assurance and therefore 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The nisk of not detecting a
nwaterial nusstatement resultmg from fraud 15 higher than for one resulting from error, as
frand may mvolve collusion, forgery, mtentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intemal contral. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelibood that, mdividually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by
a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In perfornung an audit in accordance with generally accepted andinng standards and
Governmental Auditing Stavidards, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit,

s Jdentify and assess the nsks of material nusstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or emor. and design and perform andit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining. on a test basizs, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

+  Obtamn an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate inn the circumstances. but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Cook County / Grand Marais Joint
Econonuc Development Authonty's internal control.  Accordingly, no such opuuon 15
expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



¢  Conclude whether. in our judgment. there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that rase substantial doulst about Cook County / Grand Maras Jomnt
Economic Development Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are requured to commmmicate with those charzed with govemance regarding. among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings. and certain
intermal control related matters that we identbied dunng the andit.

Change in Accouniing Principle

As descnbed in Note 7 to the financial statements, Cook County / Grand Marais Jount
Economic Development Authority adopted new accounting guidance for the vear ended
December 31, 2022, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases.
Our opmions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accomntng prnciples generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
budgetary companson schedule and the schedules of pension information. as histed in the
table of contents. be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements. is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements i an appropriate operational, econonuc, or histoncal context. We have applied
certain lumited procedures to the requured supplementary mformation m accordance with
auditing standards generally aceepted in the United States of America, wluch consisted of
mquines of management about the methods of prepanng the information and companng the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our mnquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained dunng our andit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opimon or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opuon or provide any assurance.

Management has onutted the management™s discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such nussing information. although not a part of
the basic financial statements, 15 required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an approprate operational. econonue, or histonical context. Our opinions on
the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing mformation.
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Oihver Information

Management 15 responsible for the other information mcluded in the annunal report. The other
mformation compnses the mtroductory section but does not melude the basic financial
statemnents and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements
do not cover the other information. and we do not express an opimon or any form of
assurance thereon.

In conmection with owr audit of the basie financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the
other informanon and consider whether a matenial inconsistency exists berween the other
imnformation and the basic financial statements. or the other information otherwise appears to
be materially nusstated. If. based on the work performed. we conclude that an wncorrected

matenal misstatement of the other information exists. we are required to describe 1t in our
report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Goversmment Anditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated
December 20, 2023 on our consideration of Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic
Development Authority’s infernal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations. contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters, The purpose of that report 1s solely to descnibe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Cook County / Grand Marais Joint
Economic Development Authority’s intermal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report 15 an integral part of an audit performed 1n accordance with
Govermmment Auditing Standards i considenng Cook County / Grand Marais Jomnt Economic
Development Authonty’s nternal control over fmancial reporting and compliance.

Redpalle and. Conpusy , LLC

REDPATH AND COMPANY, LLC
St Paul. Mmnesota

December 20, 2023
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Statement 1
December 31, 2022

Governamnental Businss-Type
Activities Activaties Total
Assefs;
Cash and cash equavalents 705,567 $423.732 31129299
Taes recervable 28327 - 8312
Accoumnis receivable 25 (el 4,610 24610
Prepand expenses Q15 - ] ]
Internal halamces 1 50 (e (150,000 =
Inventory - 34462 34 467
Land held for resale 203 (e - 30:3,000
Loans recervable (see Mote 107 194619 - 194,619
Capital assets
Mondepreciabls - 213685 213,685
Depreciable - net of accumulated depreciation - 6332 156 6 332 3156
Todal assets 1.407 423 6,858 845 8,266 268
Deforred outflows of resources related to pensions - 63 452 &3 452
Laabilities
Accounts payable - 17915 17,915
Due to City of Grand Marais 362 TET - 362 762
Dz to Cook County 129 830 . 129 830
Dhoe fo Mannesota Housing Fanance Agency 216, (el - 216,000
Cafit certificates - 27,193 27,193
Lease liability - due within one year . 84 564 84, 564
Long-tenm habalrhes due i more than one vear:
Lease hatality - noncirrent portion - 180,052 130,092
Loans payable to Cook County . 1169972 X1894072
Met penston habiliby - 193 (1 198 041
Todal latnlities TO8 581 2677737 3,386,319
Deferred inflows of resources related fo pensions - 50,663 S0 663
Net posation:
Net mvestment 1 capital assets . 4111413 4111413
LUnrestncied GO5 841 82484 781,325
Total pet position 608 341 %4 193 897 54,892 738

The accompanying nodes are an mitegral part of these Ananceal statements.
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND AARATS JOINT ECONOANC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Endad December 31, 2022

Program Revenues
Uperating
Charges for Cirants and
Expoeqnses Semices Contributions
B tyonie Programis.
Covernimental achivihes
Econonue development L5003 4582 £ £47 150
Business-type activities:
Golf course 1.316231 1,102 9656 T 00
Total §1819.713 51102 9656 $137 350

The accompanying notes are an mbegral part of these financial statemnents
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Eunctions Prograns:

Govermanental activihas:
Econsanic development

Business-fvpe activities:
Golf eoiare

Total

Ceeneral revemmees:

Property taxes
Unrestricted investment eaming:
Miscellaneous

Total general revenes

Chanpge m et posthon
Met posihion - begimang

Net posshon - endimng

The accompanying notes are an mfegral part of these financial statements

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes i Met Posthon

Sintement 2

Goverumerital Busimess-Type
Activities Activities Todal

(5436.132) 5 - (5436, 132}
(143 265) {143 265)
(436.132) (143, 265) {579 397)

403 376 - 403 376

1.3714 1,118 2492

4.578 1.218 5,796

405 328 2 336 411,664
(268043 (10 52 (16T, 733)

7125 645 4 334 BEX6 5060471

5603 841 %4 193 07 4,892 738

15
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COORK COUNTY /) GEAND AMARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPAMENT AUTHORITY

BALAMCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
GENERAL FLIND
December 31, 2022

Asseds
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes recenvable
Accoigis recervable
Prepand expenses
D from other fmds
Land hald for pesala
Loans recervable (see Mote 100

Total assets

Liabalities
Due to City of Grand Marms
Drue to Cook: County
De to Mannesota Housing Faance Agency
Total linbalities

Dheferred miflows of resomees:

Unavalable revenue - tages

Fumed Balance:
Monspendable - prepand itens

Unassigned
Total fnd balagce

Total lnabalrhes, deferred mflows of resoirces, and fund balance

Fumed balance reported above

Long-term assets are nof avalable to pay for curment-peniod expenditures and,

therefore, are reported as unavalable revenue in the funds
Net position of governmental actrvifies {Statement 1)

The accompamyving notes are an mbegral part of thess financial statements

16

Statement 5

705,567
28322
25,000

a1
150,000
303,000
194,619

1,407 423

362,762
129 820
216,004
108582

8,396

215
G89 530
G0 445

51 407 423

5690 445

8306
5608 841
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND AMARALS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPAMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF EEVENUES, EXFENDITURES AND CHAMNGE IN FUND BALANCE - Statement 4
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
GEMNERAL FUMD
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022
Reveres
Taxes 5358 302
Interpovermmental 25,000
SBDC Copsultant regmbursements 42 350
Miscellaneous 5,952
Total revenues 471,604
Expenditures
Chrrent:
Cperations
Accountug 2490
Advertising marketng website 6,784
Eent 12,551
Other 6,079
Staffing:
Darscior 112312
SED} Consultant expense 41,175
Travel 3941
Projects:
Business development 8 howsing projects 188,750
Cedar Grove Busaness Park 78,532
Cedar Grove stormmywater project 13 041
Fire Belief grants 24 D
Taconite Area Busmess Behef grants 13,820
Total expendifures 03 482
Change i fund balance [31,878)
Fund balance - Jamesry | x> 323
Fund balance - December 31 $650 445

The accompanying notes are & mbegral part of these financial statements

17
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COOR COUNTY / GRAND MARALS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

RECOMCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENLUES, Statement &
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF

GOVERMNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For The Year Ended December 31, 2002

Change in fund balance - govemmental funds (Siatement 4) ($31.878)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because

In the funds, under the modified acoreal basis, recevables not available for expenditure
are deferred. In the statement of activities, those revenues are recognized when eamed
The adjusimend to revenue between the fund statements and the statement of activities
15 the increase or decrease m revene deferred as unavailable

Deferred mflows of resourcas - December 31 8306
Deferred miflows of resources - January 1 {3,325 5074
Change m net position of povermmental actrvities (Statement 2) (526 504)

The accompanying nobes are an mbegral part of these finamcial statements.
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND ALARAIS JOINT ECONOANC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITIONM - FROPRIETARY FUNDS Statement &
GOLF COURSE EMTERPRISE FLIND

December 31, 2002

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2423 712
Accounts recenvable 4610
Inventory 34 462
Total cusrent asseds 462 BO4

Monourment sty

Capital assats
Mondepreciable 213 6RS
Depreciable - nef of accumulated depreciation 6,332 356
Total ponciirment assets 6,546 041
Todal asseds T.008 845
Deferred outflows of resources related o pensyons 53452
Liabalities:
Current liabalites:
Accounts payable 17915
Caft cernficates 27193
Due 1o other funds 150 000
Lease habaliry - due within one year 84,564
Teodal cumrent habalitves 279672
Moneurrent abalshes:
Lease habality - due 1n more than one year 180,092
Loan payable to Cook County 2168972
Met pension liabality 198 001
Total noncurrent abalsties 2 548 065
Total hakilities 2820737
Deferred mflows of resources related to penseons 50663
et Posabuon:
Net investment m capital assets 4111413
Unresincted B2 484
Total pet positeon £4 193 BOT

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these financial statemnents.
19
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COORK COUNTY /| GEAND MARATIS JOINT ECONOAMIC DEVELOPAMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENLUES, EXPENSES AND CHANMGE IN FUND NET POSTTTON - Statement T
FROPRIETARY FUNDS

GOLF COURSE ENTERPRISE FUND

For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

Chperuiting revemnbss:
Sales:
Food and beverage 180976
Merchandsse 132776
Less: cost of poods sold (205,603)
Idet sales 128,149
Creen fmey GTE SER
Cart rengal fees 214 408
Oaher 81.733
Tedal operatng revemes 1.102 966
Chperanusg expenses;
Salarees and wages 421.908
Pavroll wtaxes and bepefits 41.902
Adanmistrative and geneml:
Credar card fees 40627
Irance 27 600
Mazketmng and proasotron 11,619
Oither 25428
Clubbouse
Bepairs and nusintennmee 3 464
Supples 15933
Unhnes 19,430
Cash (over) short (#62)
Gronnds mainienance:
Fenlizer and chemmicals 53 745
Lerganion 10,451
Fepamrs and mantenance 62483
Seed and soil 14.050
Supplies 34352
Lalaties 30048
Diepreciation | ansartieation 437 256
Total opemtmg expenses 1,304 928
Oiperating income (loss) {201,962}
Nonoperahng revenmbes (expenses),
Litterest mnccane 1.118
Indevess expense (11.303)
Marketing prants 70,000
Miscellaneonss revemes 1.218
Tiodal nemoperatung revembes (expenses) 6l.033
Change 1n net position (140,939)
Met position - Jenuary | 4554 816
Net position - December 31 §4.193 807

The accomparymg nodes are an mbegral part of thees finameaal statements.
20
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COOR COUNTY | GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOFMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS Statement &
GOLF COURSE ENTERPRISE FUMD

For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

Cash flows provided by operating activities;

Receipts from customers $1,307 525

Pavments fo suppliers (617 439

Payisents fo employess (62 67T)

Miscallanaous revens 1,213
Net cash flows provided by operating actrvities Y)8.627

Cash flows provided by noacapatal fmancing activities

Marketing grants 0, 000

Net cash flows provided by noncapstal financing activities T, 000

Cash flows used by capital and related financimg activities:

Acquasation of capital asssts 267, 2500
Prncipal pad on leases (82 576)
Interest charpes {11,303}
Net cash flows wsed by capital and related Bnancurg activities (361,125
Cash floas from mvestment activihes:
Inferest on investments 1,118
Met increase m cash and cash aqurvalents (61, 384)
Cashi and cash eqpovalents - January 1 483,116
Cash and cash equuvalents - December 31 423 732

Reconciliateon of operatmg income (loss) 1o net cash from operating achvibies

Owperaiimg incoms (loss) (EN01 962

Adjustments to reconcile operatng meome (loss) to net cash flows

fromn operating activilies
Mascellansons revenus 1214
Depreciation / amortization expense 437,256
(Increase) decrease m accounts recervable (1,044}
(Increase} decreass oy Venionies (2.918)
{Increase) decrease m deferred outflows related to pensions 51,520
Increase (decrease) m accounts pavable 944
Increase (decrease) m deferred imflows related o penswons [94,6552)
Increase (decrease) m pension hiabaliry 44, 265

Net cash flows from operating activities 3228627

The accompanymge nobes are an mtegral part of these financial statements.
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND AMARATS JOINT
ECONOAMIC DEVELOPAENT AUTHORITY
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2022

T By i T iy

The Cook County / Grand Marais Jomt Econonue Development Authonty's (the EDA) financial statements are
prepared mn accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Umted States of Amenca (GAAP). The
Crovernmental Accoumtimg Standards Board (GASB) s responsshle for establishing GAAP for state and local
governments drough its pronouncenents (stalements and mterpretations). The more spmificant acoounting policies
establhished m GAAP and used by the EDA are discussed below.

A, FINANCIAL REPOETING ENTITY

The EDA wis estabhished June 14, 1988, pawsamnt to 1938 Minnsota Laws, Chapter 516, hnving all the powoers
and duties of an economse development authonty under Minnesota Statutes 33 469090 to 469 1081, As
required by accounting principles generally accepied m the United States of America, these financial statements
present the EDA {primany government) and 115 component umi for which the EDA 1 financially accountable
The EDA 15 governed by a seven-member Board, of whach four members are appoanted by the Cook County
Board of Conunssioners and three mepsbers are appodnted by the Grand Marxis City Councal, The Board i
organized with a chair, vice chair, treasurer, and secretary, elected anmually. The EDA s component unat of
Cook County and 15 mcludad m Cook County's anmual financial report

BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT

Blended conponent unyts are legally separate organizations but are so mtertwinad wath a pnimary govermamnent
that they are, m substance, the same as the primary governinent.  Therefore, blended compoment units ane

reported as part of o prumary govemment s operations. The EDA has one blendad component ual, the
CRMGC, LLC.

The EDA Comnussioners compnse the governmg board of the CRMGC, LLC, and EDA management has
operatiomnal responsibality for the CRMGC, LLC, CBMGC, LLC did not report amy financial activity i 2022
amel separate fmancial statements are pot preparsd,

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government wide financaal statements (the statemment -:rfnelpnrullm and the statement of actrerhes) display
mformation about the prmary povermment and s copponent wul, Elomnatons have been made 1o nunipoze
the double counting of mtemnal actnities. Governmental actrvities, which nonmally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, whech rely 1o a signuficant
extent on fees and charges to external parties for support.

In the govermment-wide statement of net position, both the povernmental and esiness-rype sctivities columns
are reported on a full accral, economue respurce basis that recopmizes all long-tenm assets and recervabiles as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The EDA’s net position 15 reported in three parts: (1) net investment i
capital assefs, (2) restncted net posihon, and (3) unrestnicted net position.

The statement of activities demonedrates the degree to which the direct expemnies of each functon of the EDA's
governmental activities and busmess-type activities are offset by program revemses. Dhirect expenses are those
clearly identifiable with a specific fumction or activity. Program revenues mchsde (1) fees, fines, and charges
paad by the reciprents of goods, senvices, or privileges provadisd by a grven funchon or activaty; and () grants
and contnbutions restrcted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
activity. Fevenues nof classified as program revenues, mcludimg all taxes, are presented as general revenunes
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The fimsd financial stailements provide anformation abowt the EDA s mdivadual fimds,  Separate statements for
each fund category, governmental and proprietary, are presented. The emphasis of povernmental and
proprietary fiumd financial statements is on mjor mdividual povernmental and enterprise funds, with each
displayed as separate columns 1 the fund financial statements.

The EDA reports the following major govemnmental fiond:

The Geperal Fund 15 the EDA’s pranary operating fund It acoounts for all financial resources of the
general povernment not accounted for m other fumds

The EDA reports the following major enterprise fund:
The Golf Course Fund 5 used to acoount for the operations of the Superior Mational at Lutsen Golf Course
C. MEASUREMENT FOUUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported wsing the econonuc resountes
measurement focus and the full scerual basis of accountme.  Fevenues are recorded when camed, and expenses
are recorded when a linbality 15 incurred regardless of the tinung of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recopmized as revenue m the vear for which they are levied. Gramts and sumular fenss are recogruized as revenus

a5 soon a5 all ehpibility requirements mnposed by the provider are met

Crovernment find financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measmement focus and
the modified accrual basis of acommimg.  Revenues are recogmezsd as soon as they are both measurable and
available. The EDA considers all revenues as available if collected within %0 days after the end of the carrent
pened, except for taes, which have a 60-day acerual penod.  Property and other taxes, licenses, and mterest are
all considerad susceptible to acenmal, Expenditures are recorded when the related fund Liabiliry is incurred,
mtp#fuf;&'m{'ipﬂland miterest on long-term debt and claums and judgments, whach are recoguzed as

o the extent that they bave matured. Procesds of long-term delbt acquisstions under capital leases
are reported as other financial sources.

Propnetary fund operating revemues, such as charges for servaces, resull from exchange fransachons associated
with the prncipal activity of the fumd. Exclange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives
up essenhally equal valses. Nonoperabime revenues, such as subsydes and investment eammygs, result from
nonexchange ransactions or medental activities.,

D. BUDGET

Duvering or before July of each year, the EDA 15 required to annually send its non-appropriated budget to the
Cook County Board of Conmussioners and the Grand Marass City Council. The proposed budget 15 presented
to the County Board and City Councd for review. The Board and Council hold public hearmgs, and a final

budget nnest be prepared and adopted no Later than December 31,

The budget 15 prepared by funchon and meludes o watten eshmate of the amount of money needed by the EDA
from the County and City m order for the EDA fo conduct business during the upeoming fiscal vear. The
ansal budget is adopted on a basts consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the General
Fund. All anmaal appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end,
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For the year ended December 31_ 2022, actual expenditures of the General Fund exceeded budpeted
appropriations by $81 852

E. PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the same date. The tax levy notice 15
mailed gy March with the first half payment doe May 15 and the second half payment due October 15, The
EDA approves an anmual levy for operatiog purposes. Property taxes are collected by Cook County and are
distributed to the ETA three times each year. Unpand taxes at December 31 become liens on the respective
property and are classified m the fnancial statements &5 taxes receivable, MNo allowance for uncollechible
recervables has been provided becanse such amounts are not expected to be matenal.

F. INTERFUND BALANCES

Outstanding balances between funds are reported o “due from/to other funds” m the fund statements. Any
resscual balances outstanding between the govermmental activibies and business-type activities are reported m
the government-wide finaneial statements as “mternal balances.”

G. INWERTORY

Inventory consists prunanly of golf course merchandase held for resale. All mventones are valued at lower of
cost or market wsing the first mfirst out method. Inventories are recorded as expenses when consumed.

H. LAND HELD FOR RESALE

Land held for resale comprises the business lots for sale my the Cedar Grove Business Park. The EDA
constructed the Cedar Grove Busmess Park within the City of Grand Marais to provide land sates for new or
existing busanesses. The loas are valued at the lower of histoncal cost or fair market value

L. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capaial assets, which include land and land mmprovements, constroction m progress, buddmgs and structures,
and clubhouse and course equipment, and nght to use leased assets are reported m the applicable povemmendal
or business-tvpe activites colunm m the government-wide financial statements and m the propnetary fund
statement of net posstion.  Capital assets are defimed by the EDMA as asceds with an mnshial, sndovedual cost of
miore tham $1,000. Such assets are recondad at lustoneal cost, excepd for land which was donated.  Donmted
capatal assets are recorded at acquasiion value. The costs of normal mamtenance and repairs that do not add 1o
the value of an asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized,

Land improvements, buddings and stroctares, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-hne method
over the following estumated usefid lives

Assets Years
Land mmprovenents i
Buddmgs and stnachares i
Equipment i1
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J.

AL

USEARMNED REVENLE
Uneamed revenue 15 reported in connection with resources that have been recerved but not yet eamed.
COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Certaun full-tume employees of the EDA and the golf course are enfifled o vacation and sick leave. Vacation
and sick leave for golf course employees mwst be used in the vear ot 55 eamed. Unused vacation af year-end &5
not matenal and therefore, 15 not reported as a labalsty. Unnsed sick leave 15 not compensated.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addibion to assets, the sfatement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. Thas separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net assets that applies toa
future penvod and so will mof be recogmized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
EDA has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It 15 the pension related deferred owtflows of
resources reported m the povernment-waide statement of net posihon.

In addition to lakbalrhes, the statement of financial posihion reports & separate section for deferred mmflows of
resources, This sepasate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net assets tat applies wa
fufure penod and therefore will rot be recogmized as an mflow of resources (revenue) wnhil that ime. The EDA
has pension related deferred mflows of resources reported m the povernment-wide statement of nel position
The EDA also has a type of them, winch anses only under a modified aceneal basis of acoounting, that qualifies
for reportmg i this category, Accordingly, the iem, umavalable revenus, 15 reporied only in the povernmental
fund balance sheet. The governmental fimds report unavalable revenues relating to taxes,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

For purposes of measunmg the net pension labality, deferred outflows/miflows of resources, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net posaion of the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)
and additions to/deducthions from PERA s iiduciary nel position have been deternuned on the same basas as they
are reported by PERA, except that PERA's fiscal year-end 15 June 30, For this puspose, plan contnbutions are
recogmzed as of emplover payroll paad dates and benefits payments and refumd are recogrzed when due and
payable i accordance with the benefit ferms, Plan myvestments are reporied at far value.

NET POSITION

Net posihon m the government-wide and propriedary fund financial statements s classified i the followig
calegones.

Net mvestinent 1 capatal assets - the amount of net position representing capatal assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, and reduced by outstandimg debt attnbuted to the acquishion, construcion, or mmprovernent of
the assets.

Eestrpcted net position — e amount of net postion for which external restnctions have been imposed by
credstors, gramtors, contributors, or knws, or regulations of other governments, and restrictions pmposed by
faw through constimational provisaions or enabling lepslabion. The EDA has no restnicted net position as of
December 31, 2022
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Ungestrcted pef position — the amount of net position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net
myvestment m capital assets.

When both restncted and unrestricted resources are available for use, if 15 the EDA"S policy 1o use restncled
recourees first and then wirestncted resources as neaded

0. FUND BALANCE

Ini the find financial statements, fumd balance 15 divided into five classifications based prmanly on the extent to

which the EDA 15 bound to observe constrnts mposed upon the wse of the resources of the povenmental
funds, These classifications are as follows:

— amoumits. that cannot be spent because they are not i spendable form, or legally or
contrachzlly required 1o be mamtamed mtact. The © noft in spendable form™ entenon mehades tems that
are not expected to be converted to cash, such as noncarrent loans, mventories, and prepasd stems.

Eestncted — amounts subject to external constraints imposed by credifors, grantors, contributors, laws, or
regulations of other povenuments, or constramts umposed by law through constitutional provisions and
enabling legislabon.

Comomited — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes as mposad by formal achon (resobofson)
of the Board of Conmussaoners. Those comummutted amoumts canmot be wsed for other parposes unless the
Board of Commussioners remove or change the specified use by taking the same tyvpe of action (resobution)
it emploved 1o previoushy commut those amoumnts.

Asggned — amounts the EDA imntends to use for specific purposes that do not meet the cntena to be
classified as restricted or commutted. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses as
determumed by the Board of Commussoners or by the Executive Dhrechor,

Linassigmed — the resadual classafication m the General Fumid, i inchedes all spendable ansoumts pot
confamed 1o the other fund balanee classifications.

When both restncted and unrestricted resources are available for wse, if 15 the EDA's policy to use resincted
resources forst and then unrestncted resounces as needed

When compuited, avsigmed or unwssigmed resotress are available for use, it is te EDA'S pohicy o 62 resources
in the following order: 1) commutted, 2) assigned, and 3) unasagned.

P. USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements mn conformaty with accounting principles generally accepted m the

United States of Amenca requires muanagensent o make estimates and sssmnpteons that affect amounts reported
in the financial statements dunng the reporting penod. Actual results could differ from the estimates.
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I —
bl NI b
A DEPOSITS

The EDA 1s authonzed by Minnesota Statutes 118A.02 and 118A 04 to designate a depository for public funds
and £o nvest i cerfificates of deposit. The EDA 15 requured by Mmnnesota Statufe 1154 03 to protect deposits
with nsurance, surety bond, or collateral. Minnesota Statute 118A 03 sdentifies allowable formes of collateral
The market value of collateral pledged shall be at least ten percent more than the amount on deposat at the close
of the financial mstihaivon’s bankmg day, not coversd by msurance or bonds

Mmnesota Statutes require that securitres pledged as collateral be held m safekespmg m a restncted account at
the Federal Reserve Bank or i an aceount at a tnist departmient of a commercial bank or otler financial
mstitation not owned or controlled by the financial mstiuton furmshing the collateral

Custodial Credat Pask — Deposits — the nsk that n the event of a bank failure, an enfity’s deposits may not be
refurned to it The EDA does pod lave a deposit policy that is more restnctive than Minnesoln Statutes,

As of December 31, 2022, the bank balance of the EDA’s deposits with financial institufons was $1,240 360
and the carmying ansoumnt was 51,129 200

Depository msurance offered by the Federal Depost Insurance Corporation msured 3677207 of the EDA's
deposats as of December 31, 2022, No collateral was pledged to protect the remaimng $363,153 of deposits

B. INVESTMENTS

The EDA may tvest its fumds m investments authenzed by Minnesota Statutes 1184 04 and 118A.05, Dunng
2022, the EDA did not have any such nvestments
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"ﬁ.l' ol Ii Eis Eil E'&Elllli
As of December 31, 2022, recervabiles of the EDA are as follows:!

Ammianis Mo
Expected o be
Total Collected Within
Recervables O Year
Governmental activities
Ciegeral Fund
Taxes $28.322 25,000
Accounts 25,000 -
Loans receivable 194,619 170,250
Busmess-type activities:
Golf course fund:
Accounts 4410 3,200
Todal recervables £257 551 $178.450

Loans recervable represent amounts loaned to area businesses as follows

During 2020, the EDA 1ssued a propussory node to a local business m the amount of $35 000, The note
quarterly pasiments of 52,035 a1 an ivterest rate of 2% per snnume As of December 31, 2022, the outsianding
balance on the note was $27 500

Dunng 2021, the EDA 1ssued sooteen loans totalme 3194 5850 as part of the Taconite Area Business Relief
Program. The loans requuare quarterly payments based on a 10-year amortization schedule af a 0% inferest rate.
The loans issued under this program have the potential to be partially (up to 50%:] forgrven. Vanous condifions
mnest be met before the EDA s board wall consider and approve forgiveness. Unfl such forpvensss occurs (see
Mote 10), outstandmg balances are reported as loans recervable. As of December 31, 2022, the outstanding
balance on the foans was $167.119

Noted  INTERFUND BALANMCES

The General Fund has loaned money to the Golf Course Fund to help cover start-up costs at the golf cotrse i
certain years. Duming 2022, 50 was repand by the Golf Course Fund and the outstanching balance as of December 31,
2022, was $150,000. The golf course plans to repay the loan to the General Fund dunng 2023,
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I —
Sfe & CAPITAL ASSETS

Capatal assets of governmental activities are wmatenial and are not reported. Capatal asset activity of business-type
pctivilies for the year ended December 31, 2022, 15 as follows

Babmce, Endmg
3 Resrated® Increases Decrexses Balance
Caputal assets not bemng depreciated:
Lamd 5213 6B5 5 - 5 - 5213 6385
Capntal assets bemg depreciated:
Land emprovements 10,561,732 B4.TRI - 10545513
Benldings and struchoes 422 14 13,300 - 455 440
Chibbatise and course equpment 1,366,215 105, 169 - 1475354
Faght to use leased assets 347232 - - 347232
Total capatal assets bewng deprecaated 12,697 325 267250 - 12,964,575
Lews accnmislated depreciation for
Land smprovements 4,752,605 278,322 - 5031015
Bnldngs and struchses I67, 181 G,634 - Ero
Clublsouse and cowrse squpment 1.054.48% 65,824 - 1A 5E3
Raght o wuse leased assets - B6.474 - g6.474
Total sccumulated depreciation g, 194,963 437,258 - 6,632 21%
Total capatal aseets beang deprected, o 6,500 162 {170,005} - 6,332 356
Tatal capatal assets, net 36,716,047 (5170,00) ¥ - 56,546.041

* As dhisewssed in Note 7, the EDA mmplementad GASE Statement No, 87 for the year ended December 31,
2022 Implementaton of the standard resulted 1n a restatement of bepnmng balances, however, there was no
net mnpact o overall beginung net posation

Deprecuafion and amortization expense m the amount of 3437 256 was charged o the golf course function
dunng 2022

30
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e
ul NG-TERM
COVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The EDA receqved a $225 000 foan i 2012 from Cook County 10 help fumed operating costs. Mo amounts wers
repard during 2022 As of December 31, 2022 S100.000 was owed to Cook County. Thas amount was repaid

duning 2023,

The EDA constructed the Cedar Grove Basiness Park withan the City of Grand Marais to provide land sites for new
of exgsting busnesses, Thepmjeclwasﬁmdedb}'ltm-hlmesuuﬁepammufEmph}Mmﬂ&mmuc
Development, Iron Raspe Resowrces grants obtained by the city, and a city issued bond.  The ety has an apresment
with the EDvA whereby proceeds from 1ot sales are to be remutted to the ciby at the tme of the sale to be used to help
repay the city issued bond that fmanced the mprovement. Umsold lots are reconded based on the lower of lastoncal
cost or fair vahee as land held for the resale and due to other governments on the balance sheet and statement of net
Positaon

The EDA owes the City of Grand Marus procesds for land held for resale after lots are sold. The value of ihe lots
as of December 31,2022 was estmated to be $303,000.
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES

In October 2014, Cook County 1ssued General Obligation Tax Abatement Bonds, Senies 20144 on belialf of the
EDA. The bonds bad an orgmal issue amount of $2 410,000 and matere on February 1, 2037, Proceeds from the
bomds were used to help finance unprovements to the Supenor Natonal at Lutsen Golf Course. The EDA entered
mio a loan agreement with Cook County to repay the County for the debt issued. The outstanding balance of the
Ioan as of December 31, 2022 was $2,162 972, No amounts were repaid dunmg 2022

CHANGE [N LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Lomg-term habality activity for the vear ended December 31, 2022 15 as follows:

Begumuzg Badugg
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Govemnmental activihies:
Operatmg loan S100 000 £ - 5 - 100,000
Land held for pecals 4200 000 . 117 000 303 000
Busmess-hype activines:
Golf sare loan 2,162 972 - - 2. 168972
Total long-term habahties 52 GB9 472 § - 107 0ix) £2 572972
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The EDA implemented GASE Statement No, 87, Leases for the yvear ended December 31, 2022, As a result, rght o
use leased assets and a lease liabality are reported on the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Net Position
— Proprietary Funds, Raght to nse leased assets are reported as part of capital assets

LEASE LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2022, the EDA had two outstandang leases associated with Supenior Natonal at Lutsen Golf
Course (SML).

Grolf cart Jease

SML leases 72 golf carts. Five seasonal lease payments of $8 283 are required each year through 2024, plos a
final pavment of $144, 000 15 due Movember 1, 2024, After all lease payvments are made, SNL has the ophion to
purchase the golf carts for $1. The leasa laabality is measired at a discoumni mate of 3,359%%, The lease Hability as
of December 31, 2022, excloding mierest, was $214 539

ML leases 72 GPE display unats for its golf cants, Six seasonal lease payments of $8,427 are requared each

vear through 2023, The lease habaliby 15 measured af o discount rate of 3.39%. The lease lababity as of
December 31, 2022 excluding interest, was 350,067,

Lease lability activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as follows:

Begmnmg
Balance, Endmg
au Restated® Increases Decreanes Balance
Busmess-hype actnes
Golf cam lease $Ta38 i - 138 £
S dephy unms kease e = 49 X237 50,067
Tial lease Eabday 47252 5 - 82 50 S204.056

* The EDA mnplemented GASE Statement Mo, 87 for the year ended December 31, 2022, Implementation of
the standard resulted 1n a restatenpent of bepnning balances, however, there was po pet mnpact to overall
beginning mef posiison.

For 2022, miterest expense mncwrred relatng to the leases was 39 403, Future lease payments are as follows:

Busiess-Type Activilies

Year Ending Lease Lialalary
Dracemibeer 31 Prancipal Integest
2023 $£84 564 £7.415
2024 180,092 53
5264 656 $12.739
2
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I —
A, PLAN DESCRIPTION

The EDA partscipates n the following cost-shanng multiple-sniplover defined benefit pension plan
adiumstered by the Public Employvess Retirement Association of Mmnpesola (PERA). PERAs defined benefit
pensten plans are established and admomstered 1 accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356
PERA's defined benefif pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401{a) of the Internal Revenmae
Code.

All full-time and certam pant-time employees of the EDA are covered by the General Employees Retrrement
Fund (GERF). GERF members belong fo the Coordmatad Flan. Coordinated Plan meembers. are covered by
Social Secunty.

B. BENEFITS PROVIDED

PERA provides retrement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state statute and
can only be modified Ty the state legrslanmre. Vested termuated employvess whe are entitled to benefits bat are
not recerving them vet are bound by the provisions in effect at the tume they last termmated thesr public serace.

Benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable service, age,
and yvears of credat at termanation of servce. Two methods are used to comguie benefits for PERA'S
Coordinated members. Members hired prior to Juby 1. 1989, recerve the hagher of Method 1 or Method 2
formulas. Only Method 2 15 used for members hired after June 30, 1989, Under Method 1, the accrual mte for
Coordinated members 15 1.2% of average salary for each of the first ten years of senvice and 1.7% of average
salary for each addiional year. Under Method 2, the aceneal rate for Coordimeted Plan members 15 1.7% of
average salary for all years of service. For members hired prior to Juby 1, 1989 a full anmuty 15 avalable when
ape phas yvears of service aqual 90 and normal retirement age 15 65, For members hered on or after July 1, 1989,
nommal retrrement age 15 the age for unreduced Social Secunty benefits capped at 66

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The postretrement merease 15 squal to 50%%
of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) announced by the S5A, with a munaynm icrease of af least 1% and a
macamum of 1 5% Recipients that have been recenving the anmuty or benefit for at least a full year as of the
June 30 before the effective date of the merease will receive the fll increase. For recipents receiving the
anmuity or benefit for at least one month but less than a full yvear as of the June 30 before the effective date of
the increase will recerve a reduced prosated increase. For members retirmg on January 1, 2024 ar later, the
mcrease will be delayved unhl normal retirement age (ape 65 if lored prior to July 1, 1989, or age 66 for
indivaduals hired on or after July 1, 1989). Members retining under Rule of 90 are exempt from the delay 1o
neral refiremnent.

O, CONTRIBUTIONS

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for emplover and employes contmbubons. Contnbuation rates can
only be modified by the state legislanse

Coordinated Plan mermbers wers required to contnbute 6 5% of their annual covered salary i fiscal vear 2032
and the EDA was required fo contnbute 7.5%. The EDA’s contnbattions to the GERF for the year ended

Decemaber 31, 2022 were 12,369, The EDA's contnbutions were equal to the required contrnbutions as set by
state sfatule.

33
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I —
D. PERSION COSTS

At December 31, 2022, the EDA reported a Lkability of $198,001 for its proportionate share of GERF's net
pension hatality. The EDA’s net pensaon hatality reflected a reduchion due to the State of Minmesota™s
contribution of $16 mallion. The State of Minnesota 15 consadered a non-emplover contnbuting entity and the
state’s contrbubion meets the defiution of a special funding situaton. The State of Minnesota’s proportionate
share of the pet pension lisbality associated with the EDA totaled 5 865, The Bt petsion liababity was
measured as of June 30, 2022, and the tofal pension liability used to caleulate the net pension liabality was
defenminad by an actuarial vahsation as of that date, The EDAs proporieon of the et pension Labdity was
based on the EDA’s contnbufions I'!‘El.'l\'t‘dh} PERA dunng the measurement penvod for emplover payroll pad
dates fromy July 1, 2021 theough June 30, 1022 relative to the total eniplover contributions seceived from all of
PERA s participatmg emplovers. The EDA s proportionate share was 000025% af the end of the measurement

period and 0,0036% for the beginning of the period

EDA s proporicnate share of the net pension habidn $198 0010
State of Mmnesota's proportionate share of the net

pension habilsy assocmted wath the EDA 5,865
Tonal 5203 866

For the vear ended December 31, 2022, the EDA recognized pension expense of $10,502 for ifs proportiomate
ﬂureaflh.eGER.Fipensmnﬂpeme In additeon, the EDA recogmzed an additvonal 3876 as pensiwon expense
[and grant revenue) for its proporteonate share of the State of Minnesota's contribution to the GERF

Al December 31, 2021, the EDA reportad 5is proportionate share of the GERF's deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resosrces related 1o pensaons from the followmg sounces.

Deferrad Cutflows Deferred Inflows

of Resowrces of Bes ources
Dhfferences between expecied and
acinal scononec expeTEnces 51654 52073
Changes m actuanal assnmplions 44,811 628
Dufference between projected and
actual myvestment eammgs TR0 .
Changes m proporton 10403 475462
Coptnbutions pasd to PERA
subsequent to the measurement date 4,304 .
Taial 563452 530 663
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The 54,304 reported as deferred outflows of resowrces related 1o pensions resulting from EDA contnaeons
subsequent to the measurement date will be recogmzed as a reduction of the net pension hability m the vear
ended December 31, 2023 Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources relatad 1o

pensions will be recogmzed m pesaon expense as follows

Year Endmg Penswon
December 31, Expense

| L2, L6862
23 G013
2024 (22.29T)
2025 17907
XE

Thereafier

E. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The total pension lsabihity m the June 30, 2022 actuanal valuateon was defermansd wsmg an mdivedual entry-ape
nornal achuenal cost method and the followang actuarial assumptions:

Inflatvon 2.25% per year
Investimeni Rate of Refum 6,505

The long-term investment rate of retum 15 based on a review of inflation and wvestment retirn assumptions
from a mumber of national wvestment consulting fimms. The review provided a range of mvestment refum rates
deemeed fo be reasonable by the actuary. An investment return of 6. 50% was deemed fo be withun that range of
reasonableness for Anancial reportomg purposes

Benefit moreases after retirement are assumed to be 1.25%6 for the GERF

Salary growth asswmptions range in annual increments from 10.25% after one year of service to 3.0% after 27
years of service

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Emgployes Morfality Table, with shight adjustments to fit
FERA's expenence,

Actuamial assmnpiions for GERF are reviewed every four years, The most recent four-year expenence shudy
was completed m 2019, The assumphon changes were adopted by the Board and become effective with the
Fuly 1, 2020 actuarial valuation

The following changes in actuanal assumphons and plan provisions occurred m 2022

Changes mn Actuanal Assumphons:
+  The mortality improvement scale was changed fom Scale MP-2020 to Scale MP-2021.
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COOR COUNTY | GRAND ALARAILS JOINT
ECOMNOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2022

The State Board of Investment, whach manapes the mvestments of PERA, prepares an analysas of the
reasonableness on a regular basas of the long-term expeacted rate of refum wsang a bulding-block method 1n
which besi-eshmate ranges of expected future rates of retum are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of retum by weighting the expected future rafes of
refurn by the target assst allocabion percentages. The target allocation and best estinaates of geometne real mies
of return for each major asset class are summanzed m the followimng table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocatyon Feal Rate of Fenrm
Domestic equity i3 5% 5104
International equsty 16.5% 5.30%%
Fixed mcome 25% 0.75%
Private markets 25% 5.90%%
Tiotal 100%%

F. DISCOUNT RATE

The discound rafe used to measure the total pensaon Latality in 2022 was 6.5%. The projection of cash flows
used fo determune the discount rate assumed that contnbutions from plan members and employers will be made
at rates sef m Minnesota Statutes, Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net position of the GERF was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of refum cn pension plan mvestments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to deternune the tofal pension habality.

G. PENSION LIABILITY SENSITIVITY

The following presents the EDA's proporonate share of the net pension hatalaty, ealculated wsing the doscoumt
rate disclosed o the preceding paragraph, as well as what the EDA’s proporivonate share of the net pension
Ieabality woild be if it were caleulated usng a discount rate o percentage point lower or one percentige point
hugher than fe current discount rate:

1%0 Decrease m 1% Incréase m
Dhscount Rate (55%) Discount Rate (6.5%)  Discount Rate (7 5%)
Proportionate share of the
GERF net pensaon habiliny $312,755 198,001 31035 887

H. PENSION PLAN FIDUCTARY NET POSITION

Detatled information about the pensson plan’s fiduciary net posation 1s avalable m a separately-issued PERA
finamcial report that inchedes fnancial statements and requared supplementary information,  That report may be
obiamned at warw mnpera.org.
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COORK COUNTY | GRAND MARATLS JOINT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dwecember 31 2022

I ——————————————————————————————.
™ y AL i

The EDA i exposed o vanous nsks of loss related to torts, thefl of, damage to, or destruchion of assels, ermors or
OIUSSI00S;, mjunes o emplovees; or matural disasters. The EDA purchases commercial msusance for these msks of

boss Tl retanns msk for the deductble portions of the msurance, The amounts of these deduchibles are consadered
menaterial o the finameral siatements.

There were oo sigmificant reductions m msurance coverage from the pnor vear. Seftlements dud not excesd
msurance coverage for the past three fiscal years.

™ B! B ™

As deseribed m Note 3, loans issued as part of the Taconste Area Business Relief Program have the potential fo be
partially forgiven. On November 21, 2023, the EDA Board passed resolution 2023-18 authorezng the EDA 1o
forpive $139 799 of loan program debt owed by busmess enfrbies. The amount forgrven wall be reported as an
expenditure (aind the boans recetvable balance will be reduced) i the EDA's 2023 financial statements.
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

REQUIRED sUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Exhibir A-1
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUMD

For The Wear Ended December 31, 3022

Varance with

Fumnal Budges -
Eu.dE-rbrd Amount Actual Posthve
O ganal Final Aot (Megative)
R.E'I.'EI:I.L'IE-.
Taxes $410,600 410 600 53948302 (512,298)
Iatergovernmental 25,000 25,000 250000 -
SHDC Consulinni resmbursements - - 4.2 350 4234
Miscellaneons - - 3352 3,952
Total revemes 435 600 435 600 471 604 36,004
Expendstures:
Cuarrent
Cperabions
Accounlng 5,000 5,00 2 494 2510
Advertivmg marketing webale 3,500 3500 6, T84 {32843
Al 15,000 1.5, 0003 . 15,000
Boent 15,000 15,0000 12,551 2440
Crher 14,300 14300 G079 .22
Swfhng
Drrecrod 124 800 124 8040 112319 11481
SED Consultant EXpeTSE - - 41175 {41_]?5]
Travel 4,000 4 000 3541 59
Projects:
Busmess development & housmg propects 180,000 180 (00 188,750 (8,750
Cedar Grove Business Park 60,000 G0, 000 78,332 (18331
Cedar Grove stormawvater project - - 13041 (13,0413
Fire Relef grants - - 24 0y 24,0007
Tacomite Area Business Relief grames = = 13830 (13800
Toal expendansres 421 4600 421 600 303 482 (81881
Change i fund balance 514,000 514,000 (31.ETE) IH&.E?E]
Fuznd balance - Tameary 1 122343
Fund balance - December 31 L6910, 445

See poconrpanying nodes 1o the requared supplementany mformaton.
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COOK COUNTY / GEAND MABRALS JOINT ECONOAMIC DEVELOPAENT AUTHORITY

RECHTRED SUPFLEMENTARY INFORMATION Exhibi 4-2
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIARD ITY -

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIEEMENT FUNND

For the Lasi Ten Vewmn

EDA's EDiA's
Staie'y Proportionate Fioportionate
Proporionase Shaee and Share of the
EDA' Shage of the fthe: Saate’y ed Premsom Plan Fudaciary
EDaAs Properscaaly Mot Pension Ralmed Listehiry a4 & es Positnen xs
Propantaon Shape of ithe Lanhy Ehape of the Percentage & Pescentape
Medibieuien Of o M Nt Peaizoe Andovasted Mot Perisoe Cavered af Ceovered af dos Toeal
Date Penuca Laakadery with the EDA Lttty Puvwall Pasradl Pemiacn
Jeme 50 Listaliry ] [l {a+1) feh (2] Lasbulry
Bt Bk 00008 L1108 601 £5 945 L3005 BAS L1850 000 LIRS T e
B 1| 0 0035 I33, 738 4632 138418 B0 809 . B0
B b [ EELEY 388 £27 i 1 Bt 240 187 £y ey .14
Bl L) 00033% 182450 3 566 188,117 T30 557 TR M B0 %
ko) E 4 [l 198 Ti s & 5is 06234 235 413 £4 5% T e
n. 1] ) 0 0034% 217058 2766 JI9ET] X000 ST.0% i
bt | 3 0.0025% i 3054 130, %84 174853 130 2% LR
i 3 i DR 30R 155478 - 155 478 174504 55 045 8.

This schedule w smended o dhow information for ten years. Additeaal yesrs will be Sesplayed a5 they become avaslsble.

Do Sccompasimid ooles 1o e eqiured viipplessntany mfsemation
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COOR COUNTY / GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMERT AUTHORITY

REQUIRED SUFPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Exhibir A-3
SCHEDULE OF PEMSION CONTRIBUTIONS -

GENERAL EMPLOYEES EETIREMENT FLIND

For the Last Ten Years

Al

Contribations Actal

i Relation to Contributeems

Statutonly Statutonly Contnbaution as a Percenfage

Year Required Recuured Deficiency Coversd of Coversd
Ending Confnbutions Contnbations (Exeess) Payroll Payroll
December 31, (2] () (- a) {c) {b'c)

Max: 59 369 49 369 3 . $124. 920 7.50%
Xzl 18 3504 18,394 . 245,255 7.50%
2o 19.778 19,778 - 263 707 7.50%%
e 17,154 17,154 . 228720 71.50%%
s 18,051 18,051 . 240 680 7.50%
xo1v 15832 15,832 - 211093 7.50%
20la 15808 15,808 - 210,773 7508
Mis 12,657 12,657 . 168, Ta 7.50%

Thus schedule 15 mbended to show mformation for ten vears. Addibonal vears wall be displaved as they become avmlatile.

See accompanying notes to the requared supplementary mformation.
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND MARALS JOINT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPFLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MOTES TO RSI

DECEMBER 31, 2022

. __________________________________________________________________________________|
i) A i1 i

The General Fund budget is lagally adopted on a basas consistent with accounting principles generally acoepled
i the United States of Amenica. The legal level of budgetary control s at the fumd level

il ey (Y %
EERA - General Emplovees Rerirement Fund

2022 Changes in Actianal Assumpbons.
+  The mortality inprovement scale was changed from Scale MP-2020 fo Scale MP- 2021

2021 Changes n Actuanal Assumphons:
s  The mvestment retumn and sigle discount rates were changed from 7.50% to 6.50% for financial
feporing parposes
*  The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020

’Mﬂﬂhn#imﬁfmm ASSIHTPONS:
The price inflaton assumptron was decreased from 2 3 io 2 25%.

s The payroll growth sssumption was decreased from 3 25% to 3.00%.

= Assumed salary merease mies were decreased 0.25% and assumed rates of retirement were
changed resulting m more unreduced (nonmal) retirements and shightly fewer Rule of 90 and early
retirempents, Assmned rates of termunaton and disability were also changed,
Base mortality tables were changed from RP-2014 tables fo Pub-2010 tables, wath achustments
The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 1o Scale MP-2019,
The spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year older.
The assumed munber of marmed male new retirees electng the 100% Jomt & Survivor ophion
changed from 35% to 45% . The assumed number of married female new retiress electing the
100%% Jount & Survivor option changed from 15% (o 30%. The comesponding munber of marmed

new retirees electing the Life anmnty option was adjusted accordmgly

2020 Changes in Plan Provissons:
+  Augmentation for current privatized n:l!n:lbﬂsmre:h_redm i, ﬁ:l'l' thep-em:-d Iuh 1_, 220
throngh December 31, 2003 and 0.0% after, Angmentation was elipanated for privatizations
occumng after June 30, 2020,

2019 Changes 10 Achuanal Assumghions
= The mortality projecthion scale was changed from MP-201 7 to MP-2013.

201 % Changes in the Plan Provisions
s The employer supplemental contnbution was changed prospectively, decreasing from $31.0
mullson to 321 0 mulbon per year. The State’s special fimding contnbution was changed
prospectively, requirmng 516.0 million due per year through 2031,

2018 Changes n Acfuanal Assumgphions.
*  The mortakity projection scale was changed from MP-2015 o MP-2017
& The assiumed benefil merease was changed from 1.00% per vear theough 2044 and 2.50% per year
thereafter to 1.25% per vear.
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COOK COUNTY [ GRAND ALARAIS JOINT
ECONDMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REQUIFRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MNOTES TO BSI

DECEMBER. 31, 2022

2017 Changes 1n Aciarial Assunphios

-

The Combined Service Anmuty (CSA) loads were clanged from 0,8% for active mermbers and
0% for vested and non-vested deferred members. The revised CS5A loads are now 0.0% for
active member hability, 15 0% for vested deferred member Labality and 3.0% for non-vested
deferred member Labality

The assumed post-retrement benefit mcrease rate was changed from 1.0%s per year for all years
o 1.0% per vear through 20844 and 2.5% per year thereafler

2016 Changes m Acuanal Assumptions:

-

The asswmed post-retrrement benefit increxse rate was changed from 1.0% per year rough 20335
and 2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year for all fiure years.

The assumed mvestment return was changed from 7. 9% to 7.5%. The single discount rate was
changed from 7.9%: to 7.5%.

Dher assumpirons were chanped pursuant to the expenence study dated June 30, 2015, The
assumed fubure salary mereases, payroll growth, and miflaton were decreased by 0.25% t0 3.25%
for payroll growth and 2.50%: for milaten,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUINTING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commussioners
Cook County / Grand Marais Joint
Economic Development Authority
Grand Marais, Minnesoa

We have andited. i accordance with the anditing standards generally accepted in the Umted
States of Amenca and the standards applicable to financial andits contamed m Govermment
Auditing Standards 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of
Cook County / Grand Marais Jomnt Economic Development Authornity, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively compnse Cook County / Grand Marais Jomnt Econonue Development Authoriny's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2023,

Report on Internal Contrel over Financial Reporting

In plannmg and perfornung our andnt of the tmancial statements, we considered Cook County
{ Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority's internal control over financial
reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the cirenmstances for the purpose of expressing our opimions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opnuon on the effectiveness of Cook County / Grand
Marass Joint Econonmic Development Authonty's mtemal control. Accordingly. we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic
Development Authonty's intemal control.

A deficiency in internial control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the nommal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A marerial
weakness 15 a deficiency. or a combmation of deficiencies, i mtemal control, such that there
15 a reasonable possibality that a matenal musstatement of the entitv's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a tmely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combmation of deficiencies, m intemal control that is less severe than a
matenal weakness, vet important enough to ment attention by those charged with
EOVemance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the hnuted purpose deseribed in the first
paragraph of thas section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies m mternal control

55 Sth Streat East, Suite 1400, 5t. Paul, MKN, 55101 651 426, 7000 wwa radpathepat.com
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that nught be matenal weaknesses or sigmificant deticiencies and theretore, matenal
weaknesses or sigmificant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We identified
certain deficiencies in intemal control. described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses as 1ems 2022-01 and 2022-02 that we consider to be matenal weaknesses.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cook County / Grand Marais Joint
Economic Development Anthonty's financial statements are free from matenal
nusstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations. contracts, and grant agreements, nonconmpliance with which could have a direct
and marerial effect on the financial statements. However. providing an opinion on
comphance with those provisions was not an objective of our andit, and accordingly. we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govermment duditing
Standards.

Response to the Findings

Government Audinmg Srandards requires the auditor to perform linuted procedures on Cook
County / Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority’s responses to the findings

identified i our andit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses.

Cook County / Grand Marais Jomt Economic Development Authonty’s responses were not
subjected to the other anditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and.
accordmngly, we express no opinion on the responses,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report 1s solely 1o desenbe the scope of our testing of internal control and
comphance and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority’s mternal control or
on comphiance. This report 1s an integral part of an audit perfonmed m accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic
Development Authonty’s mtemal control and comphance. Accordingly, thus commumication
1s not suitable for any other purpose.

E‘M and -{fn-pua_!-i-ﬂ-

REDPATH AND COMPANY. LLC
St. Paul. Minnesota

December 20, 2023
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MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Cook County / Grand Marais Joint
Economic Development Authority
Grand Marais. Minnesota

We have andited, m accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Amenica and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government
Andiring Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the govenmental activities, the busmess-type activities and each major fimd of
Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority as of and for the year
ended December 31. 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authonty’s
basic financial statements, and have 1ssued our report thereon dated December 20, 2023,

In comnection with our andit. we noted that Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic
Development Authority failed to comply with provisions of the contracting— bid laws,
depositories of public funds and public investments, and miscellaneous provisions sections of
the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Other Political Subdivisions, promulgated
by the State Auditor pursuant to Minnesota Statute § 6.65, msofar as they relate to
accounting matters as described i the Schedule of Findings and Responses as items 2022-03,
2022-04 and 2022-05. Also. in connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that
caused us to believe that Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic Development
Authoriry failed to comply with the provisions of the conflicts of interest. and claims and
disbursements sections of the Mimesora Legal Compliance Andit Guide for Onver Political
Subdivisions, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. However. our andit was not
directed primanly toward obtaming knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had
we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding
Cook County / Grand Marais Jomt Econonuc Development Authonty’s noncomphance with
the above referenced provisions, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the anditor to perform limited procedures on the
Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economme Development Authority’s responses to the legal
compliance findings identified in our aedit and descnbed in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Responses. The Cook County / Grand Marais Joint Economic Development
Authority’s responses were not subjected to the other anditing procedures applied in the andit
of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opmion on the response.

55 Sth Street East, Suite 14000 5t Paud, MM, 55101 651426, 7000 www. redpathcpas.com
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The purpose of this report 15 solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the
results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly. this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Redpae and ('.'npua,:'.-{-f.'-

REDPATH AND COMPANY, LLC
St. Paul. Minnesota

December 20, 2023
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND MARAIS JOINT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND BEESPONSES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

2022-01 Lack of Ideal Segregation of Duties

Crireria: Generally, a system of internal control contemplares segregation of dunes such thar
no imdividual has responsibality to execute a transachon, has physical access 1o the related
assets, and has responsibility or authonty to record the transaction.

Condition: Due to the linited number of persommel. certain individuals perform multiple
aspects of a financial transaction cyele. For example, the same employee is responsible for
collecting loan payments and depositing collecthons imto the EDAs bank account. At the
golf course. at times. the same employee will work the cash registers, process daily closing
reports. and prepare deposits.

Canse: This condition 15 commeon to organizations of this size due to a limited number of
staff.

Effecr: The lack of ideal segregation of duties subjects the EDA to a higher nisk that errors
or fraud could occur and not be detected in a timely manner.

Recommendation: Any modifications of intermal controls in this area mmst be viewed from
a cost/benefit perspective.

Fiews of Responsible Officials and Corrective Action Plan: Due to limited number of
employees it i1s not possible to provide for the complete segregation of duties. The EDA has
established other safeguards to compensate for this. such as Board review of all disbursements
and monthly financial statements.
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COORK COUNTY / GRAND MARAILIS JOINT
ECOMNOAMIC DEVELOPMENST AUTTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDIMNGS AND EESPONSES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

2022-02 Financial Statement Corrections

Criterio: An entity’s system of internal controls should allow management or emplovees, in

the normal course of performung their assigned functions, to prevent or detect nusstatements on

a tumely basis,
Condiriorn: The following adjustments were identified by the auditor and corrected:

Oipening equity was overstated and hiabilities were understated by 525,425
Loans receivable were overstated by $13,5820 because a 2021 grant was previously
recorded as a loan
*  The amount the golf conrse fund owed the general fund was understated by $50.000
+  Fire grant expenditures were understated by 524,000
+  Accounts receivable was understated by 525.000 relating to an amount owed by the
Sawlhall Village developer
Member accounts receivable of the golf course was overstated by $42 328
Property taxes owed to the City of Grand Marais were understated by 859,762
An unemplovment tax Liabality account was overstated by 512,633

Canse: Tumover in the Executive Director and accountant positions hindered the EDA s
ability to record all ransactions correctly.

Effect: Inadequate controls over the vear-end closing process resulls in an mcreased nsk
that financial statement nusstatements may occur and not be detected on a tunely basis.

Recommendation: We reconunend the EDA continue 1ts efforts to appropnately account
for transactions and account balances.

Views of Responsible Officials and Corrective Action Plan: The EDA hired a new Executive
Director and bookkeeper to address vacant positions. The EDA will implement more regular
review by the Executive Director. Board Treasurer and bookkeeper to ensure accurate
transactions and record keeping. wlile detecting any nusstatements i a tunely manner. Tlus
meclhides mmproved record keeping policies and procedures and more detaled chart of income

and expense accounts for record keepig pauposes.
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COOK COUNTY / GRAND MARAIS JOINT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

202203 Insufficient Collateral

Crireria: Minnesota Statute 1184 03 provides centain specific collateral requirements for
deposits at fimancial mstimtions, including a requurement that collateral be provided m an
amount equal to or greater than 1 10% of unmsured deposits by the financial msthitution or an
irevocable standby letter of credit 1ssued by the Federal Home Loan Bank m an amount at
least equal to the deposits held at the close of the financial msumnon’s banking day.

Condirion: At December 31, 2022, the EDA had momes on deposat in the amount of
51,063,153 at one financial mstitution. 3300000 of these deposits were msured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). $563.153 of the deposits were uninsured or
uncollateralized as of December 31, 2022,

Canse: Unknoswn.

Effect: Custodial eredit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the EDA s deposits
may not be retumed to it. Insufficient collateral meraases this rsk.

Recommendation: We reconmmend the EDA obtain sufficient collateral 1o comply with
Minmesota Statute 118A.03 and reduce its custodial eredir risk.

Fiews of Responsible Qfficials and Corrective Acrion Plan: The EDA will pursue any
necessary relocation of monies to ensure sufficient collateral by financial institution. The EDA
has taken action (moved money to Grand Marais State Bank that has pledged collateral) m
2023 to address this issue, will take further sumilar action if needad.
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COOK COUNTY / GEAND MARAIS JOINT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

2022-4 Contract Documentatiomn

Criteria; For each construction contract in excess of 550,000 awarded pursuant to a lowest
responsible bidder process. the successful contractor must submut a verification of compliance
signed under oath by an owner or officer venifying compliance with the minimmmm criteria set
forth in Minnesota Stamte 160285, subd. 3.

Before making final settlemnent with any contractor under a contract requinng the emplovment
of emploveess for wages by said contractor and by subconfractors. an entity must obtain a
certificate by the Commissioner of Revenue that the contractor or subcontractor has complied
with the withholding requirements of Minnesota Stamte 290,92 (either Form IC134 ora
Contractor’s Withholding Affidavit Confirmation).

Condirion: For the clubhouse bathroom remodel project. documentation showing that a
venfication of compliance fonn and either Form IC 134 or a Contractor’s Withholding
Affidavit Confinmation were not provided.

Canse: Unknown.
Effect: Contract related nsks increase when required documentation 1s not obtamed.

Recommendation: We recommend documentation be obtamed to comply with Statutes
16C.285 and 290.92.

Frews of Responsible Officials and Corrective Aetion Plan: The EDA will establish a detailed
procurement policy, including reference to necessary documentation required for complhiance
with Mmnesota Statue. In addition to a procurement policy. the Executive Director wall
provide raming on adopted procurement practices with Supervisors/Managers at Superior
National at Lutsen Golf Course.
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COORK COUNTY ( GRAND AMARAILS JOINT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND EESPOMSES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

2022-05 Bonus Paviments

Criteria; Based on an opinion of the Minnesota Attomey General. a bonus for past services is
void as a granuty in the absence of a pre-existing agreement or pursuant to collective
bargaining.

Comdirion: During 2022, bonus payments were made to certain full-time employees of the golf

course. However. not all employment agreements contained langnage specifying that a pre-
existing agreement was in place for a bonus,

Canse: Unknown.
Effect: There 15 a greater risk that the validity of a bonus payment may be challenged.

Recommendation: If emplovees are eligible for bonuses, their employvment agreement should
specifically state the terms of eaming a potential bonus and ideally parameters to quantify the

potential bonus.

Fiews af Responsible Qfficials and Cormreciive Action Plan: The EDA will ensure applicable
emplovment agreements define terms of earning eligible bonus, Beginning in year 2024, the
EDA will no longer provide bonus payments.

5
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COOK COUNTY AND GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATE OF MINNESOTA
COOK COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR AND, UPON APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT
FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION FOR AN AMOUNT NOT
TO EXCEED $300,000 TO SUPPORT CONSTRUCTION OF THE BJORKBERG RESIDENTIAL PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the Cook County and Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority (“EDA”)
has the legal authority to apply for funding from the Department of Iron Range Resources and
Rehabilitation (“IRRR”); and

WHEREAS, the Executive Director of the Cook County Housing and Redevelopment Authority
(“HRA”) has agreed to provide technical and managerial support to ensure proper planning and grant
administration for the project;

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Cook County, Minnesota published
May 5, 2022 found zero vacancies in the general-occupancy rental properties in and near Cook County
and cited a demand for between 210 and 230 new single-family homes by the end of 2026.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the EDA Board of Commissioners hereby approves
application for and, upon approval, acceptance of a housing grant up to $300,000 from the IRRR to
support construction of infrastructure for Bjorkberg, a 20-unit single family residential development, (the
“Project”) located at 651 West Street in Grand Marais.

Ex. Dir. January 16, 2023

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE:

The purpose of this resolution is to authorize application for and, upon approval, acceptance of a
Housing grant up to $300,000 from the Department of Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation (IRRR).
The Housing grant program requires a 1:1 match, which will be provided through a combination of
Developer equity and other local funding sources. The Project is located at 651 West 3™ Street between
6™ and 8™ avenues West. The project will consist of approximately 20 units of for-sale townhomes; at
least four of the developed lots will be reserved for entry-level priced homes and affordable to
households earning approximately 115% of the area median income or less. While the IRRR requires the
EDA be the sole applicant for countywide grant applications, the Executive Director of the HRA has
agreed to provide technical and managerial support for this housing grant.
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Board member moved the adoption of the foregoing resolution, and said motion was duly
seconded by Board member , and upon vote being taken thereon, the following voted
in favor thereof:

and the following voted against the same:

Whereupon said resolution was declared adopted by the Cook County and Grand Marais Joint Economic
Development Authority this 16" day of January, 2024.

ATTEST:

Steve Surbaugh — Board President
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TO: Cook County/Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority
FROM: Jeremy Larson, JL Larson Construction
DATE: 1/5/24

RE: Letter of Intent to Purchase Lot(s) at Cedar Grove Business Park

INTENT: The purpose of this letter is to set forth some of the basic terms and conditions of the
proposed purchase by the undersigned (the “Buyer”) of certain real estate owned by the Cook
County/Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority (the “Seller”). The terms set forth
in this Letter will not become binding until a more detailed “Development Agreement” is
negotiated and signed by the parties.

SELLER: COOK COUNTY/GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

425 W Highway 61, Suite B

Grand Marais, MN 55604

BUYER: Jeremy Larson, JL Larson Construction
CONTACT NAME: Jeremy Larson
CONTACT ADDRESS: PO Box 533, Grand Marais, MN 55604

PROPERTY. The property proposed to be purchased is owned by the Cook County/Grand

Marais Joint Economic Development Authority located at Lot _6 Block __ 5 in Cedar

Grove Business Park, Grand Marais, Minnesota. The proposed purchase price is

$10,000 (based on Lot 6 having one-third of the buildable space of our current lot, Lot 5); and the Buyer
wishes to use the property for the purpose of future expansion of current business, JL Larson
Construction, operating on neighboring Lot 5. Intended timeline for construction: lot clearing, Fall 2024;
building construction, 2025.

NON-BINDING. This letter of Intent does not and is not intended to contractually bind the

parties and is only an expression of the basic conditions to be incorporated into a binding
Development Agreement. This Letter does not require either party to negotiate in good faith or to
proceed to the completion of a binding Development Agreement. The parties shall not be
contractually bound unless and until they enter into a formal, written Development Agreement,
which must be in form and content satisfactory to each party and to each party’s legal counsel, in
their sole discretion. Neither party may rely on this Letter as creating any legal obligation of any
kind.

EXPIRATION OF OFFER. This Letter of Intent shall constitute an open offer until such time

that a quorum of the Cook County/Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority Board
of Commissioners has had the opportunity to respond to the offer.

If you would like to discuss a sale of Real Estate with the undersigned on these general terms,
please sign and return a copy of this Letter of Intent to the undersigned at your earliest
convenience.
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Parcel Report
Parcel Number: 80-800-0506

General Information

Taxpayer Name: COOK CO & GRAND MARAIS EDA

Mailing Address: PO BOX 597
GRAND MARAIS MN 55604-0597

Property Information

Property Address:

Plat Name: CEDAR GROVE BUSINESS PARK
Short Legal: LOT 6 BLOCK 5

*The brief legal description is for informational purposes only and does not necessarily represent the full property description.
S/T/R: Section: 16 Township: 61 Range: 1 E
Deeded Acres: 1.30

Lake Name: Front Feet: 0.00
Hometead?: No

Assessment Information (2022 Assessor Market Values For Taxes Payable in 2023)
Class Code - Land Est Bldg Est Total Est Land Taxable Building Total Taxable
Description Value Value Value Value Taxable Value Value

770
County Public Service $35,100 S0 $35,100 S0 S0 S0

Enterprises

Sales Information

CRV # Buyer Seller Purchase Sale Date
Price (yyyymm)

Building Information

Number Type Sub-Type Description Year Stories Bedrooms Bathrooms Gross CAMA Bidg

Built Bldg Value
Area
2023 Tax Information (Below are Taxes Payable 2023)

Delinquent: No
Net Tax: $0.00

Date Generated: 1/8/2024 8:49:31 AM
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Parcel Report
Parcel Number: 80-800-0506

Special Assessments: $1,251.33
Total Tax and Assessments: $1,251.33

2023 Payment
1st Half 2nd Half
Due Date: May 15 October 16
Paid: 625.66 625.67
Amount Due: 0.00 0.00
DISCLAIMER

This data is intended to be used for informal purposes only. It is not intended for use in abstract work, land
surveys, title opinions, appraisals, or other legal documents or purposes. For up-to-date and/or certified
information, the user should contact the Cook County Auditor at 218-387-3640. Cook County does not
guarantee the accuracy of the material herein contained and is not responsible for any misuse or
misrepresentation of this information or its derivatives.

Date Generated: 1/8/2024 8:49:31 AM
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Greetings Theresa,

My name is Paulina Backstrom and | am interested in purchasing some land available in the Cedar Grove
Business Park. | am a life long resident of Cook County and owner of a recycling company with growth
opportunities. | have been serving the county with my business since 2018 from my home property. |
have many requests to expand my services to more businesses including a request to take over the
service the Lions Club provides to the city of Grand Marais with their recycling cans located around
town. To do this, | need a more central location where | can construct a storage/sorting facility.
Although the remaining lots available are not the most convenient lots for a developer, | believe | could
make the corner lots coming into the business park that central location.

| have talked to other property owners in the park about the lots and land use permits and additional
costs they have incurred to develop their properties. | have also spoken with the county Land Use
Specialist and taken into consideration the challenges the wet lands on these lots will create to come up
with my offer. | would like to purchase Block 4 lots 4 and 5 for $8,000 ($4000 each). Combining these 2
lots would allow me to work around most the wet lands and be able to leave much of the wooded area
as a buffer between the Gunflint Trail and the park. As the first property coming into the Cedar Grove
Park, it will be important to create an aesthetically pleasing impression for folks coming and going. My
goal would be to develop the space into a welcoming and functionable area for my business while
keeping the natural charm and beauty we expect in Cook County for our residents and visitors.

Thank you for your consideration.

Paulina Backstrom

EcoBlue Recycling, LLC

218-370-8008

83



Pcel D

|

Lor1 |

BLOCK 2 |

———— —

L

Business Park Legal Description
27031-80~-800-0402 | 1.33 | COOK CO & GRAND MARAIS EDAN
: d LOT 3 BLOCK 4 27031-80-800-0403 | 084 | COOK CO & GRAND MARAIS EDA
LOT 4 BLOCK 4 27031-80-800-0404 | 1.15 | COOK CO & GRAND MARAIS EDA
LOT 5 BLOCK 4 27031-80-800-0405 | 083 | COOK CO & GRAND MARAIS EDA

[ Cedar Grove Business Park Boundary Il Non-Mitigated Wetland
| [ Cedar Grove Business Park Parcels [l Mitigated Wetland
— Lot Setbacks 10" Contour

Wetland 50° Natural Buffer 2' Contour
=% Drainage Direction Slope <15 degrees
w MDNR Detailed Stream Lines B Slope > 15 degrees

Notes

- A 50" ratursl buffer i reguired surrcundng the wetlands that have not been
mitgated. If a buffer is not achiovadie all provisions must be made 1o control
sediment from enenng the wetlands. This nciudes providng redundant sedesent
conitrol, for example double sit fence or & it fence and sedienent contrel log

= It is recommended that land daturbance & minimized within 50° within the mon-
mapped streams and dranages

~-Cook County parcel data downloaded from MaGeo. Boundanes shown on the maps
and the GIS data sets are approximate ~— they are not substitutes for certfied
property surveys, legal property descriptions o detaled plat maps

~Lot setbacks are established = the Grand Marais Zorsng Code Ordinance 15213
~Aerial Imagery: Cook County 2018 Pictometry Mosaic




Parcel Report
Parcel Number: 80-800-0404

General Information

Taxpayer Name: COOK CO & GRAND MARAIS EDA

Mailing Address: PO BOX 597
GRAND MARAIS MN 55604-0597

Property Information

Property Address:

Plat Name: CEDAR GROVE BUSINESS PARK
Short Legal: LOT 4 BLOCK 4

*The brief legal description is for informational purposes only and does not necessarily represent the full property description.
S/T/R: Section: 16 Township: 61 Range: 1 E
Deeded Acres: 1.15

Lake Name: Front Feet: 0.00
Hometead?: No

Assessment Information (2022 Assessor Market Values For Taxes Payable in 2023)
Class Code - Land Est Bldg Est Total Est Land Taxable Building Total Taxable
Description Value Value Value Value Taxable Value Value

770
County Public Service $33,700 S0 $33,700 S0 S0 S0

Enterprises

Sales Information

CRV # Buyer Seller Purchase Sale Date
Price (yyyymm)

Building Information

Number Type Sub-Type Description Year Stories Bedrooms Bathrooms Gross CAMA Bidg

Built Bldg Value
Area
2023 Tax Information (Below are Taxes Payable 2023)

Delinquent: No
Net Tax: $0.00

Date Generated: 1/8/2024 8:12:51 AM
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Parcel Report
Parcel Number: 80-800-0404

Special Assessments: $1,251.33
Total Tax and Assessments: $1,251.33

2023 Payment
1st Half 2nd Half
Due Date: May 15 October 16
Paid: 625.66 625.67
Amount Due: 0.00 0.00
DISCLAIMER

This data is intended to be used for informal purposes only. It is not intended for use in abstract work, land
surveys, title opinions, appraisals, or other legal documents or purposes. For up-to-date and/or certified
information, the user should contact the Cook County Auditor at 218-387-3640. Cook County does not
guarantee the accuracy of the material herein contained and is not responsible for any misuse or
misrepresentation of this information or its derivatives.

Date Generated: 1/8/2024 8:12:51 AM
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Parcel Report
Parcel Number: 80-800-0405

General Information

Taxpayer Name: COOK CO & GRAND MARAIS EDA

Mailing Address: PO BOX 597
GRAND MARAIS MN 55604-0597

Property Information

Property Address:

Plat Name: CEDAR GROVE BUSINESS PARK
Short Legal: LOT 5 BLOCK 4

*The brief legal description is for informational purposes only and does not necessarily represent the full property description.
S/T/R: Section: 16 Township: 61 Range: 1 E
Deeded Acres: 0.83

Lake Name: Front Feet: 0.00
Hometead?: No

Assessment Information (2022 Assessor Market Values For Taxes Payable in 2023)
Class Code - Land Est Bldg Est Total Est Land Taxable Building Total Taxable
Description Value Value Value Value Taxable Value Value

770
County Public Service $24,400 S0 $24,400 S0 S0 S0

Enterprises

Sales Information

CRV # Buyer Seller Purchase Sale Date
Price (yyyymm)

Building Information

Number Type Sub-Type Description Year Stories Bedrooms Bathrooms Gross CAMA Bidg

Built Bldg Value
Area
2023 Tax Information (Below are Taxes Payable 2023)

Delinquent: No
Net Tax: $0.00

Date Generated: 1/8/2024 8:15:44 AM
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Parcel Report
Parcel Number: 80-800-0405

Special Assessments: $1,251.33
Total Tax and Assessments: $1,251.33

2023 Payment
1st Half 2nd Half
Due Date: May 15 October 16
Paid: 625.66 625.67
Amount Due: 0.00 0.00
DISCLAIMER

This data is intended to be used for informal purposes only. It is not intended for use in abstract work, land
surveys, title opinions, appraisals, or other legal documents or purposes. For up-to-date and/or certified
information, the user should contact the Cook County Auditor at 218-387-3640. Cook County does not
guarantee the accuracy of the material herein contained and is not responsible for any misuse or
misrepresentation of this information or its derivatives.

Date Generated: 1/8/2024 8:15:44 AM
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M (00K COUNTY &
GRAND MARAIS
ECONOMIC
E D DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY

425 Highway 61, Suite B
PO Box 597
Grand Marais, MN 55804

COOK COUNTY/GRAND MARAIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ROSTER AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

2024

Pursuant to Minnesota Statues, Section 469.096, Subd.2, An Authority shall elect a president, a vice-
president, a treasurer, a secretary, and an assistant treasurer. The authority shall elect the president,
treasurer, and secretary annually. A commissioner must not serve as president and vice-president at the
same time. The other offices may be held by the same commissioner. The offices of secretary and
assistant treasurer need not be held by a commissioner.

Commissioner Roster

Commissioner Appointment Term

Steve Surbaugh County 2022-2024
Howard Hedstrom County 2020-2025
David Mills County Board Rep | 2023-2026
Mary Somnis County 2023

Mark Shackleton City 2022-2026
Tracy Benson City Council Rep 2023-2026
Myron Bursheim City 2022-2024

Board Officers

Office

Commissioner

President

Vice President

Secretary

Treasurer

Assistant Treasurer

Theresa Bajda, Executive Director

Committee Assignments

Committee Chair Commissioner Commissioner
Finance Mark Shackleton Steve Surbaugh Howard Hedstrom
Personnel Myron Bursheim Tracy Benson David Mills

Grant Review

Steve Surbaugh

Mark Shackleton

Mary Somnis

Design Review

Steve Surbaugh

Mark Shackleton

Howard Hedstrom

Taconite Harbor

Tracy Benson

Myron Bursheim

David Mills
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M E%T}..E"#}.‘H.% 425 Highway 61, Suite B
ECONOMIC PO Box 597
E DA REI}%IOUPEIEN Grand Marais, MN 55804

2024 Proposed Board Meeting Schedule

The Cook County/Grand Marais Joint Economic Development (EDA) Board will host regular meetings in
the County Commissioner’s Room at 4pm on the 3™ Tuesday, according to the following proposed
meeting dates:

e January 16, 2024

e February 20, 2024
e March 19, 2024

e April 16,2024

e May21, 2024

e June 18, 2024

e July 16,2024

e August 20, 2024

e September 12, 2024
e QOctober 15, 2024

e November 19, 2024
e December 16, 2024

The EDA Board may adjust meeting dates or times, provided it provides public notice of such changes at
least three days in advance of the new meeting.
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Memorandum of Understanding
Between
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Cook County and
Cook County/Grand Marais Joint Economic Development Authority

At its December 19, 2023 meeting the Cook County/Grand Marais Joint Economic
Development Authority (EDA) approved a Land Sale Agreement (enclosed) with
the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Cook County (HRA), and at its
January 17, 2024 meeting the HRA approved the enclosed Land Sale Agreement
with the EDA. The subject property consists of the following:

Lots 1 and 2, Block 3 Cedar Grove Business Park, Grand Marais, MN.

The purpose of this MOU is to memorialize the intentions of both the EDA and
HRA surrounding the conveyance of the subject property. Both parties
acknowledge and agree to the following:

- The EDA is conveying the property to support future housing development.

- The HRA desires and will make every effort to facilitate the construction of
not less than 4 units of housing on the subject property.

- Short term, commercial rentals will not be allowed on the property.

- The type/s, location and number of housing units to be built on the subject
property will be determined by a variety of factors, including market
conditions, the needs of the community, and the ability to secure
development partners for the desired housing.

This MOU is effective as of the last date of signature below and is in addition to
but does not circumvent the terms of the Land Sale Agreement dated January 17,
2024.

Jason Hale, Executive Director Theresa Bajda, Executive Director
Housing and Redevelopment Cook County/Grand Marais Joint
Authority of Cook County Economic Development Authority
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Date:

Date:
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Zone Districts for the City of Grand Marais
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Parcel Report
Parcel Number: 80-016-4200

General Information

Taxpayer Name: COOK CO & GRAND MARAIS EDA

Mailing Address: PO BOX 597
GRAND MARAIS MN 55604-0597

Property Information

Property Address:

Plat Name:

Short Legal: N 1/2 OF NW/SE EXCEPT PLAT OF CEDAR GROVE BUSINESS PARK

*The brief legal description is for informational purposes only and does not necessarily represent the full property description.
S/T/R: Section: 16 Township: 61 Range: 1 E
Deeded Acres: 15.52

Lake Name: Front Feet: 0.00
Hometead?: No

Assessment Information (2022 Assessor Market Values For Taxes Payable in 2023)
Class Code - Land Est Bldg Est Total Est Land Taxable Building Total Taxable
Description Value Value Value Value Taxable Value Value

770
County Public Service $165,700 S0 $165,700 S0 S0 S0

Enterprises

Sales Information

CRV # Buyer Seller Purchase Sale Date
Price (yyyymm)

Building Information

Number Type Sub-Type Description Year Stories Bedrooms Bathrooms Gross CAMA Bidg

Built Bldg Value
Area
2023 Tax Information (Below are Taxes Payable 2023)

Delinquent: No
Net Tax: $0.00

Date Generated: 1/3/2024 8:57:05 AM
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Parcel Report
Parcel Number: 80-016-4200

Special Assessments: $0.00

Total Tax and Assessments: $0.00

2023 Payment

1st Half 2nd Half

Due Date: May 15
Paid: 0.00 0.00
Amount Due: 0.00 0.00

DISCLAIMER

This data is intended to be used for informal purposes only. It is not intended for use in abstract work, land
surveys, title opinions, appraisals, or other legal documents or purposes. For up-to-date and/or certified
information, the user should contact the Cook County Auditor at 218-387-3640. Cook County does not
guarantee the accuracy of the material herein contained and is not responsible for any misuse or
misrepresentation of this information or its derivatives.

Date Generated: 1/3/2024 8:57:05 AM
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FORGIVEABLE DEFERRED LOANS/
GRANT FUNDS

Workforce Housing Development Program

Program Overview

The Workforce Housing Development Program is a competitive funding program that targets small to mid-size cities in
Greater Minnesota with rental workforce housing needs. Grant funds or deferred loans are available to build market rate
residential rental properties in communities with proven job growth and demand for workforce rental housing.

Application Process
Applications are accepted on an annual basis through a competitive Request for Proposals (RFP).

Application Requirements

Eligible Applicants: An eligible applicant is an eligible project area that is generally a small to mid-sized city in
Greater Minnesota. Specifically, an eligible project area is either:
e A home rule charter or statutory city located outside of the metropolitan area with a
population exceeding 500

e A community that has a combined population of 1,500 residents located within 15
miles of a home rule charter or statutory city located outside the metropolitan area

e An area served by a joint county-city economic development authority

Preference will be given to projects located in an eligible project area with 30,000 or
fewer residents. Developers cannot apply for program funds directly; they must work
with an eligible applicant.

Eligible Properties: Market rate or mixed income residential rental properties. Per the statute, preference will
be given to projects with the highest percentage of market rate units.

Eligible Activities: New construction or adaptive reuse. Rehabilitation of occupied rental housing is not an
eligible activity under this program.

Letter of Support: Letter of support from a local business or businesses that employ a minimum of 20 full-
time employees in aggregate.

Matching Requirement: Applicants must match the funds requested, at a minimum, of one dollar for every two
dollars. A local government resolution stating the amount of committed matching funds
from the local government, a nonprofit organization, a business, or a combination, is
required. The match can come from sources such as tax increment financing (TIF), tax
abatement, cash funds, grants, land donations and in-kind donations.

Matching funds cannot come from the developer or an entity affiliated with the developer
unless otherwise approved in writing by Minnesota Housing.

Qualified Expenditures: Funds can only be used for qualified expenditures. Qualified expenditures include
acquisition of property; construction of improvements; and provisions of loans or subsidies,
grants, interest rate subsidies, public infrastructure and related financing costs.

MINNESOTA 800.657.3647
HOUSING www.mnhousing.é?v


http://www.mnhousing.gov/

Vacancy Rate: Vacancy rate in the community must be at or below five percent for the prior two-year

period.
Funding Terms
Funding Options: Applicants choose to request funds in the form of a grant or a deferred loan.
Grant Terms: e Three year grant contract

e Construction must begin within 12 months of contract execution

e Construction must be complete within 24 months of construction start

Deferred Loan Terms: e Threeyear unsecured loan
e Zero percent interest
e Forgivable
e Construction must begin within 12 months of contract execution

e Construction must be complete within 24 months of construction start

Disbursement Schedule Supporting documentation for the disbursement of funds is required.
e An initial disbursement of up to one-third of the award upon execution of contracts.
e An additional disbursement of up to one-third of the award mid-construction.

e Afinal disbursement upon construction completion.

Maximum Funding The amount of funds requested cannot exceed 25 percent of total development
Amount: costs (TDC).

Reporting and Monitoring:  Recipients will be subject to annual reporting and monitoring during the term of the
grant or loan.

Questions

Sara Bunn, Program Manager: 651.296.9827 or sara.bunn@state.mn.us.

MINNESOTA 800.657.3647
HOUSING www.mnhousing.égv
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2023 Cook County

Annual Report
G

Cook County SBDC by the numbers

Counseling Sessions | Unigue Clients

Counseling Hours
763 172 706

Capital Funding | Businesses Created
$6,067,777 16

Northland SBDC by the numbers

Counseling Sessions | Unigque Clients | Counseling Hours Capital Funding Businesses Created
12,366 829 4030 $31,301,328 74
As 2023 fades into 2024.... What’s a small business owner to do? Visit the SBDC!

Most often heard from local businesses, 2023 was an “OK”

year.
What might 2024 bring?

As the nation recovers from
collective trauma, the Covid
19 pandemic, global conflicts,
racism and racial injustice,

inflation and climate-related

disasters, 70% of Americans
admit to being stressed about
their personal finances, and a majority — 52% of adults said
their financial stress has increased since before Covid 19
according to a CNBC Your Money Financial Confidence

Survey.

A combination of higher prices for basic goods and services,
increasing borrowing rates on credit cards, auto loans,
mortgages and other debt is eating away at people’s sense of

financial security.

We deliver professional, high quality, individualized business
advising and technical assistance to existing small businesses

and pre-venture entrepreneurs.

I offer problem-solving assistance to help small businesses
access capital, develop and exchange new technologies, and
improve business planning, strategy, operations, financial
management, personnel administration, marketing, export
assistance, sales and other areas required for small business
growth and expansion, management improvement, increased

productivity and innovation.

All our consultations are in confidence unless clients provide

written permission.

Thanks to the Cook County Grand Marais EDA for their

sponsorship.

Together we can continue to thrive.

icons created by Dewi Sari, FreepQ, 93\1 Tons, Eucalyp
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